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PART |

ITEM 1. Business.

General

Whirlpool Corporation, the leading worldwide manufacturer and marketer of major home appliances, was incorporated in 1955 under the laws of Delaware as
successor to a business that traces its origin to 1898. The Company manufactures in 14 countries under nine major brand names and markets products to
distributors and retailers in more than 170 countries. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had approximately 68,000 employees. As used herein, and exc
where the context otherwise requires, the terms “Company” and “Whirlpool” include Whirlpool Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Products and Markets

The Company manufactures and markets a full line of major appliances and related products, primarily for home use. The Company'’s principal products are
home laundry appliances, home refrigerators and freezers, home cooking appliances, home dishwashers, room air—conditioning equipment, and mixers and
small household appliances. Approximately 10% of the Company’s unit sales volume is purchased from other manufacturers for resale by the Company. The
Company also produces hermetic compressors and plastic components, primarily for the home appliance and electronics industries.

The following table sets forth information regarding the total net sales contributed by each class of similar products which accounted for 10% or more of the
Company’s consolidated net sales in 2002, 2001, and 2000.

Percent in Year ended December 31 (millions of dollars)
Class of Similar Products 2002 2002 2001 2000
Home Refrigerators and Freezers 30% $ 3272 $ 3,106 $ 3,165
Home Laundry Appliances 31 %  $ 3381 $ 3,09 $ 3,094
Home Cooking Appliances 15%  $ 1672 $ 1,603 $ 1,636
Other 24% $ 2691 $ 2538 $ 2,430
Net Sales 100%  $ 11,016 $ 10,343 % 10,325

The Company markets and distributes major home appliances in the United States under the Whirlpool, KitchenAid, Roper, and Estate brand names primarily
retailers, buying groups, and builders. KitchenAid portable appliances, such as mixers, are sold directly to retailers. The Company sells products to the builde
trade both directly and through distributors. Additionally, the Company sells to Crosley Corporation under the Crosley private label brand, and to Costco
Wholesale Corporation under the Kirkland Signature brand. Major home appliances are manufactured and/or distributed in Canada under the Inglis, Admiral,
Speed Queen, Whirlpool, Roper, and KitchenAid brand names. In Mexico, major home appliances are manufactured and marketed under the Whirlpool, Acro
KitchenAid, Estate, Roper, and Supermatic brand names. Some products are sold in limited quantities by the Company to other manufacturers and retailers f
resale in North America under their respective brand names.

The Company has been the principal supplier of home laundry appliances to Sears, Roebuck and Co. (“Sears”) for over 80 years. The Company is also the

principal supplier to Sears of residential trash compactors and a major supplier to Sears of dishwashers, freestanding ranges, home refrigerators and freezers
microwave—hood combinations. The Company supplies products to Sears for sale under Sears’ Kenmore brand name. Sears has also been a major outlet fol
Company’s Whirlpool and KitchenAid brand products since 1989. In 2002, approximately 21% of the Company’s net sales were attributable to sales to Sears.



In Europe, Whirlpool markets and distributes its major home appliances under the Whirlpool, Bauknecht, Ignis, Laden, Polar, and other local brand names an
portable appliances under the KitchenAid brand name. In addition to its extensive operations in Western Europe, the Company has sales subsidiaries in Hun
Poland, the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Greece, Romania, Bulgaria, Latvia, Estonia, Lithuania, Croatia, and Morocco and representative offices in Russia,
Ukraine, Yugoslavia, and Slovenia. In certain Eastern European countries, products bearing the Whirlpool and Ignis brand names are sold through distributor
The Company manufactures refrigerators and freezers and markets a full line of products under the Whirlpool, KIC, and Ignis brand names in South Africa.
Whirlpool’'s European operations also sell products carrying the Whirlpool, Bauknecht, Ignis, Algor, and Fides brand names directly in Asia and to distributors
and dealers in Africa and the Middle East.

In Latin America, the Company markets and distributes its major home appliances through regional networks under the Whirlpool, Brastemp, Consul, and
Eslabon de Lujo brand names. Appliance sales and distribution in Brazil, Argentina, and Chile are managed by the Company’s Brazilian subsidiary, and in
Bolivia, Peru, Paraguay, and Uruguay through distributors. Appliance sales and distribution in Central American countries, the Caribbean, Venezuela, Colomt
and Ecuador are managed by Whirlpool's North America Region and through distributors.

In Asia, the Company has organized the manufacture, marketing, and distribution of its major home appliances into five operating groups: (1) mainland China
(2) South Asia, which includes India, Bangladesh, Sri Lanka, and Nepal; (3) Oceania, which includes Australia, New Zealand, and Pacific Islands; (4) North
Asia, which includes Hong Kong, Taiwan, Korea, and Japan; and (5) Southeast Asia, which includes Thailand, Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, and the
Philippines. The Company markets and sells its products in Asia under the brand names Whirlpool, KitchenAid, Bauknecht and Ignis by a combination of dire
sales to high—-volume retailers and chain stores, and through full-service distributors to a large network of electronics stores.

Competition

The major home appliance business is highly competitive. In most major markets throughout the world, 2002 was a challenging year in the industry with rising
material costs, decreased consumer demand, and intense price competition. In North America, there has been continued polarization in retail distribution
channels with most retailers either (1) offering little or no customer service and competing solely on the basis of price, or (2) providing value added services
coupled with a brand building strategy. The Company firmly believes that it can best compete in the current environment by providing value added products a
services under its strong brand names.

The Company believes that, in terms of units sold, it is the largest North American manufacturer of home laundry appliances and one of the largest North
American manufacturers of home refrigerators and freezers, room air conditioning equipment, dishwashers, and cooking products. The Company believes the
North America there are approximately 20 manufacturers or marketers of major home appliances.

The Company believes that in Europe it is, in terms of units sold, one of the four largest manufacturers and marketers of major home appliance products, out
approximately 35 European manufacturers, the majority of which manufacture a limited range of products for a specific geographic region. There continues to
significant merger and acquisition activity as manufacturers seek to broaden product lines and expand geographic markets, and the Company believes that si
merger and acquisition activity will continue. The Company believes that its Pan European organizational structure and strategy of marketing brand names th
are recognized throughout the region are competitive advantages in the European market.

The Company believes that it is well-positioned in the Latin American appliance market due to its ability to offer a broad range of products under
well-recognized brand names to meet the specific requirements of consumers in the region. The Company believes that it is about twice the size of its neare:
competitor and that there are approximately 25 manufacturers or marketers of major home appliances in the region.



In Asia, the major home appliance market is characterized by low saturation and, as a result, rapid growth (except in Japan and South Korea). The Asian mar
is served by approximately 50 manufacturers or marketers of varying size and position on a country—by—country basis. The Company believes that it is the
industry leader in the Indian market and it continues to establish itself throughout the remainder of the region.

Competition in most of the Company’s markets is based upon a wide variety of factors, including, principally, product features, price, product quality and
performance, service, warranty, advertising and promotion. As a result of its global position, the Company believes it has a competitive advantage by reason
its ability to leverage engineering capabilities across regions, transfer best practices, and economically purchase raw materials and component parts in large
volumes.

Other Information

The Company’s interests outside the United States are subject to risks which may be greater than, or in addition to, those risks which are currently present in
United States. Such risks may include currency exchange rate fluctuations; high inflation; the need for governmental approval of, and restrictions on, certain
financial and other corporate transactions, and new or continued business operations; the convertibility of local currencies; government price controls; restrict
on the remittance of dividends, interest, royalties, and other payments; restrictions on imports and exports; duties; political and economic developments and
instability; the possibility of expropriation; uncertainty as to the enforceability of commercial rights and trademarks; and various types of local participation in
ownership.

The Company is generally not dependent upon any one source for raw materials or purchased components essential to its business. In those areas where a -
supplier is used, alternative sources are generally available and can be developed within the normal manufacturing environment, although some unanticipate
costs may be incurred in transitioning to a new supplier where a prior single supplier is abruptly terminated. While there are pricing pressures on some materi
and significant demand for certain components, the Company believes such raw materials and components will be available in adequate quantities to meet
anticipated production schedules.

Patents presently owned by the Company are considered, in the aggregate, to be important to the conduct of the Company’s business. The Company is licen
under a number of patents, none of which individually is considered material to its business. The Company is the owner of a number of trademarks and
registrations therefor in the U.S. and foreign countries. The most important for its North American operations are the trademarks Whirlpool, KitchenAid, the
KitchenAid Mixer Shape, Estate, Roper, Supermatic, Acros, and Inglis. The most important trademarks owned by the Company in Europe are Whirlpool,
Bauknecht, Ignis, Laden, and Polar. In Latin America, the most important trademarks owned by the Company are Whirlpool, Brastemp, Consul, and Eslabon
Lujo. The most important trademark owned by the Company in Asia is Whirlpool.

Expenditures for Company—-sponsored research and engineering activities relating to the development of new products and the improvement of existing prodi
are included in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company’s manufacturing facilities are subject to numerous laws and regulations designed to protect or enhance the environment, many of which require
federal, state, or other governmental licenses and permits with regard to wastewater discharges, air emissions, and hazardous waste management. The Comr
policy is to comply with all such laws and regulations. Where laws and regulations are less restrictive, the Company has established and is following its own
standards consistent with its commitment to environmental responsibility.

The Company believes that it is in compliance in all material respects with all presently applicable federal, state, local, and other governmental provisions
relating to environmental protection in the countries in which it has manufacturing operations. Capital expenditures and expenses for manufacturing operation
directly attributable to compliance with such provisions worldwide amounted to approximately $32.5 million in 2002,



$23 million in 2001, and $22 million in 2000. It is estimated that in 2003 environmental capital expenditures and expenses for manufacturing operations will be
approximately $26 million. Capital expenditures and expenses for product related environmental activities were not material in any of the past three years anc
not expected to be material in 2003.

Globally, the entire major home appliance industry, including the Company, must contend with the adoption of stricter governmental energy and environment:
standards to be phased in over the next several years. These include the general phase—out of ozone depleting chemicals used in refrigeration and energy
standards rulemakings for other selected major appliances produced by the Company. Compliance with these various standards as they become effective wil
require some product redesign. However, the Company believes, based on its understanding of the current state of proposed regulations, that it should be ab
develop, manufacture, and market products that comply with these regulations.

The Company has been notified by state and federal environmental protection agencies of its possible involvement in a number of “Superfund” sites in the
United States. However, based upon evaluation of the facts and circumstances relating to these sites by the Company and its technical consultants, the Com
does not presently anticipate any material adverse effect upon the Company’s earnings, financial condition, or competitive position arising out of the resolutio
of these matters or the resolution of any other known governmental proceeding regarding environmental protection matters.

For information on product recalls during the past year, see Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Annual Report which is incorporated her
by reference.

For an update of the global restructuring plan announced by the Company in December 2000, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the A
Report which is incorporated herein by reference.

For information on the Company’s acquisitions during the past year in Poland, Mexico, and China, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the
Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference.

For certain other financial information concerning the Company’s business segments and foreign and domestic operations, see Notes 1 and 17 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference.

Available Information

Financial results and investor information can be accessed through Whirlpool's website at www.whirlpoolcorp.com; click on the “Investors” tab, and then “SEC
Filings.” Copies of Whirlpool's Form 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K reports, as well as amendments to them, are available free of charge through Whirlpool's website
the same day they are filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 2. Properties.

The principal executive offices of Whirlpool Corporation are located in Benton Harbor, Michigan. At December 31, 2002, the principal manufacturing operatior
of the Company were carried on at 47 locations worldwide, 37 of which are located in 13 countries outside the United States. The Company occupied a total
approximately 47.2 million square feet devoted to manufacturing, service, administrative offices, warehouse, distribution, and sales space. Over 13.3 million
square feet of such space is occupied under lease. In general, all facilities are well maintained, suitably equipped, and in good operating condition.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.

As of, and during the quarter ended, December 31, 2002, there were no material pending legal proceedings to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries v
party or to which any of their property was subject.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of 2002.






PART Il

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange. As of February 24, 2003, the number of holder:
record of the Company’s common stock was approximately 8,541.

High and low sales prices (as reported on the New York Stock Exchange composite tape) for the Company’s common stock for each quarter during the years
2002 and 2001 are set forth under the heading “Stockholders’ and Other Information” on the last page of the Annual Report which is incorporated herein by
reference. Cash dividends declared on the Company’s common stock for each quarter during the years 2002 and 2001 are set forth in Note 18 to the Consoli
Financial Statements in the Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data.

The selected financial data for the five years ended December 31, 2002 with respect to the following line items are shown under the “Eleven Year Consolidat:
Statistical Review” in the Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference: Total net sales, earnings from continuing operations, earnings from
continuing operations per share of common stock, dividends declared per share of common stock, total assets, and long—term debt. See the material incorpo
herein by reference in response to Item 7 of this report for a discussion of the effects on such data of business combinations and other acquisitions, dispositic
and restructuring activity, restructuring costs, accounting changes, earnings of foreign affiliates, and other significant activity impacting or affecting the
comparability of reported amounts.

ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

See the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” section of the Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Information with respect to market risk can be found under the caption “Market Risk” in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” section of the Annual
Report which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are contained in the Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference. Supplementary financ
information regarding quarterly results of operations (unaudited) for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 is set forth in Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. For a list of financial statements and schedules filed as part of this report, see the “Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statem
Schedule(s)” on page F-1.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.



PART Il

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The following table sets forth the names of the Company’s executive officers at December 31, 2002, the positions and offices with the Company held by them
such date, the year they first became executive officers, and their ages at December 31, 2002:

First Became

Name Office an Executive Officer Age
David R. Whitwam Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 1985 60
Jeff M. Fettig Director, President and Chief Operating Officer 1994 45
R. Stephen Barrett, Jr. Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 2002 49
Paulo F. M. Periquito Executive Vice President and President, Latin America 1997 56
David L. Swift Executive Vice President, North American Region 2001 44
Michael D. Thieneman Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer 1997 54
Michael A. Todman Executive Vice President and President, Whirlpool Europe 2001 45

Each of the executive officers named above was elected to serve in the office indicated until the first meeting of the Board of Directors following the annual
meeting of stockholders in 2003 and until his successor is chosen and qualified or until his earlier resignation or removal. Each of the executive officers of the
Company has held the position set forth in the table above or has served the Company in various executive or administrative capacities for at least the past fi
years, except for (a) Mr. Swift who, prior to joining the Company in October 2001, for the previous 20 years held various executive or administrative positions
with the Eastman Kodak Company, the most recent being President, Kodak Professional Group, and (b) Mr. Barrett who, prior to joining the Company in
September 2002, for the previous 24 years held various financial and executive positions with Procter & Gamble Co., the most recent being Vice President,
Finance for P&G’s European—-based global Fabric and Home Care business.

Information with respect to directors of the Company can be found under the caption “Directors and Nominees for Election as Directors” in the Company’s
Proxy Statement which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.

Information with respect to compensation of executive officers and directors of the Company can be found under the captions “Executive Compensation” and
“Compensation of Directors” in the Proxy Statement which is incorporated herein by reference.



ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Information with respect to security ownership by any person(s) known to the Company to beneficially own more than 5% of the Company’s stock and by eac
director of the Company and all directors and elected officers of the Company as a group can be found under the caption “Security Ownership” in the Proxy
Statement which is incorporated herein by reference.

The following table presents information relating to securities authorized under equity compensation plans.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

(a) (b) (©)
Number of securities to Number of securities remaining available for future
issuance under
be issued upon exercise Weighted-average

exercise price of equity compensation plans (excluding

of outstanding options, outstanding options,
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights securities reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 6,007,195 $ 56.59 4,270,868
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders 0 0 181,500
Total 6,007,195 $ 55.59 4,452,368

The only plan reflected above that was not approved by the Company’s security holders is the Key Employee Treasury Stock Ownership Plan. This plan, the
terms of which are substantially similar to the Company’s Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plans, was established to support the hiring and retention initiatives a
key leadership positions by providing key leaders with the opportunity to receive common stock of the Company and stock option, restricted stock, and phant
stock awards to be paid from the Company’s treasury stock. In 2002, no awards were granted under this plan.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

None.

ITEM 14. Controls and Procedures.

(@) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the
effectiveness of the Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-14(c) and
15-d-14(c)) as of a date (the “Evaluation Date”) within 90 days before the filing date of this annual report, have concluded that as of the Evaluatic
Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were adequate and designed to ensure that material information relating to the Compan
and its consolidated subsidiaries would be made known to them by others within those entities.

(b) Changes in internal controls. There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affec
those controls subsequent to the Evaluation Date.



PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.

(@) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

1. The financial statements listed in the “Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule.”

2. The financial statement schedule listed in the “Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule.”

3. The exhibits listed in the “Exhibit Index.”

(b) Reports on Form 8-K filed during the fourth quarter of 2002.

A Current Report on Form 8-K for October 24, 2002 pursuant to Item 5—“Other Events” announced the mailing of a summary of the 2001 annual report
for the Whirlpool 401(k) Plan to members of the Plan.

(c) Exhibits.

See attached “Exhibit Index.”

(d) Financial Statement Schedules.

The response to this portion of ltem 15 is submitted as a separate section of this report.
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, David R. Whitwam, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Whirlpool Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing
and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being
prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and
procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this
annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the
Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our
most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls
which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls;
and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual
report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in
other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the



date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 14, 2003 /s/ DAVID R, WHITWAM

Name: David R. Whitwam

Title: Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer



CERTIFICATIONS

I, R. Stephen Barrett, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Whirlpool Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing
and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being
prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and
procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this
annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the
Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our
most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls
which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls;
and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual
report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in
other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the



date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 14, 2003

/s/ R. SEPHEN BARRETT' R

Name: R. Stephen Barrett, Jr.

Title: Executive Vice President
and Chief
Financial Officer



ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

ITEMS 15(a) (1) AND (2) AND 15(d)

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SCHEDULE

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

The following consolidated financial statements of the registrant and its
consolidated subsidiaries, set forth in the Annual Report, are incorporated herein
by reference in Item 8:

Consolidated balance sheets—December 31, 2002 and 2001

Consolidated statements of operations—Three years ended December 31, 2002

Consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity—Three years ended December 31, 2002

Consolidated statements of cash flows—Three years ended December 31, 2002

Notes to consolidated financial statements

The following report of independent auditors and consolidated financial statement schedules of the registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries are submitted
herewith in response to Items 15(a) (2) and 15(d):

Page
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors F-2
Schedule Il—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts F-3
The following exhibits are included herein:
Exhibit 12—Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges F-4

Individual financial statements of the registrant’s affiliated foreign companies, accounted for by the equity method, have been omitted since no such company
individually constitutes a significant subsidiary.

Certain schedules for which provisions are made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under
related instructions or are inapplicable, and therefore have been omitted.






Report of Ernst & Young LLP,

Independent Auditors

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Whirlpool Corporation

Benton Harbor, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Whirlpool Corporation as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidate
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. Our audits also includec
financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s manageme
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perforn
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basi
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significe
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for o
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Whirlpoc
Corporation as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period e
December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002 the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible
assets. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2001 the Company changed its method of accounting for derivative instruments
hedging activities.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Chicago, lllinois

February 4, 2003



SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

(millions of dollars)

Col. A Col. B Col. C Col. D Col. E

Additions

(1)
Charged to Costs

Balance at Beginning and (2) Charged to Other Accounts / Balance at End
Description of Period Expenses Other Deductions—Describe of Period

Year Ended December 31, 2002:
Allowances for doubtful accounts—trade receivables $ 93 $27 $ 26—A $ 94
Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Allowances for doubtful accounts—trade receivables $ 103 $32 $ 42—A  $ 93
Year Ended December 31, 2000:
Allowances for doubtful accounts—trade receivables $ 124  $13 $ 34—A  $ 103

Note A—The amounts represent accounts charged off, less recoveries of $1 in 2002, $2 in 2001 and $4 in 2000, translation adjustments and transfers.
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Earnings

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and other items
Portion of rents representative of the interest factor

Interest on indebtedness

Amortization of debt expense and premium

WEFC preferred stock dividend

Fixed charges

Portion of rents representative of the interest factor
Interest on indebtedness

Amortization of debt expense and premium

WFC preferred stock dividend

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

EXHIBIT 12

Year Ended
December 31,

2002

$ 495
18
143

2001

$ 93
25
162



ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
ITEMS 15(a)(3) and 15(c)
EXHIBIT INDEX

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

The following exhibits are submitted herewith or incorporated herein by reference in response to Items 15(a)(3) and 15(c). Each exhibit that is considered a
management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed pursuant to Item 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K is identified by a “(2).”

Number and Description of Exhibit

3(i) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company. [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3(i) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993] [File No. 1-3932]

3(ii) Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company as amended August 17, 1999. [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3(ii) to the Company
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999] [File No. 1-3932]

4(i) The registrant hereby agrees to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission, upon request, the instruments defining the rights of hold
of each issue of long—term debt of the registrant and its subsidiaries.

4(ii) Rights Agreement, dated April 21, 1998, between Whirlpool Corporation and First Chicago Trust Company of New York, with exhibits.
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Form 8-K, dated April 22, 1998] [File No. 1-3932]

10(iii)(a) Whirlpool Retirement Benefits Restoration Plan (as amended and restated effective January 1, 2002).(Z)

10(iii)(b) Whirlpool Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (as amended and restated effective December 31, 1993).(Z) [Incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10(iii)(c) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993] [File No. 1-3932]

10(iii)(c) Resolution adopted on December 12, 1989 by the Board of Directors of the Company adopting a compensation schedule, life insurance

program and retirement benefit program for eligible Directors.(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(d) to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993] [File No.1-3932]

10(ii)(d) Resolution adopted on December 8, 1992 by the Board of Directors of the Company adopting a Flexible Compensation Program for the
Corporation’s nonemployee directors.(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(e) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993] [File No. 1-3932]

10(iii)(e) Whirlpool Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors (as amended effective January 1, 1992 and April 20, 1993).(Z) [Incorporatec
by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(f) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993] [File No.
1-3932]

10(iiiy(f) Form of Agreement providing for severance benefits for certain executive officers.(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Item 5—Other Events t«
the Company’s Form 8-K dated April 26, 2000] [File No. 1-3932]

10(iii)(g) Whirlpool Corporation 1989 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan (as amended June 20, 1995).(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit
10(iii)(r) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995] [File No. 1-3932]

10(iiiy(h) Administrative Guidelines for the Whirlpool Corporation Restricted Stock Value Program (pursuant to one or more of Whirlpool's Omnibus

Stock and Incentive Plans).(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(i) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1993] [File 1-3932]



Number and Description of Exhibit

10(iii) (i)

10(ii) )
10(ii) (k)
10(ii) (1)

10(ii)(m)

10(iii)(n)

10(iii)(0)

10(ii)(p)
10(ii)(a)
10(ii)(r)
10(ii)(s)

10(ii)(t)

10(ii) (u)

10(iii) (v)

Administrative Guidelines for the Whirlpool Corporation Executive Stock Appreciation and Performance Program (pursuant to one or more of
Whirlpool's Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plans).(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(j) to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation Nonemployee Director Stock Ownership Plan (as amended February 16, 1999, effective April 20, 1999).(2)
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit A to the Company’s proxy statement for the 1999 annual meeting of stockholders] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Performance Excellence Plan (as amended January 1, 1992, February 15, 1994 and April 20, 1999).(Z) [Incorporated by reference
from Exhibit B to the Company’s proxy statement for the 1999 annual meeting of stockholders] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation Executive Deferred Savings Plan (as amended effective January 1, 1992).(2Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit
10(iii)(n) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation Executive Officer Bonus Plan (effective as of January 1, 1994).(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(0) to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation Charitable Award Contribution and Additional Life Insurance Plan for Directors (effective April 20, 1993).(2)
[Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(p) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1994] [File No. 1-3932]

Form of agreement for the Whirlpool Corporation Career Stock Grant Program (pursuant to one or more of Whirlpool's Omnibus Stock and
Incentive Plans).(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(q) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1995] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation 1996 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan (as amended, effective February 16, 1999).(2) [Incorporated by reference fror
Exhibit 10(jii)(r) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation 1998 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan (as amended, effective February 16, 1999).(2) [Incorporated by reference fror
Exhibit 10(jii)(s) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999] [File No. 1-3932]

Employment Agreement with Paulo F.M.O. Periquito.(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Part Il Other Information, Item 6 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 1998] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation 2000 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan.(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit A to the Company’s proxy
statement for the 2000 annual meeting of stockholders] [File No. 1-3932]

Form of Stock Option Grant Document for the Whirlpool Corporation Stock Option Program (pursuant to one or more of Whirlpool's Omnibus
Stock and Incentive Plans).(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(t) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2000] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation Key Employee Treasury Stock Ownership Plan (effective October 16, 2001).(2) [Incorporated by reference from the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation Nonemployee Director Treasury Stock Ownership Plan (effective October 16, 2001).(2Z) [Incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 4(d) to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on November 20, 2001] [File No. 333-73726]
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Number and Description of Exhibit

10(iii) (w)

10(iii)(x)

10(ii(y)

12
13
21
23
24
99(a)
99(b)

Administrative Guidelines for the Whirlpool Corporation Special Retention Program (pursuant to one or more of Whirlpool's Omnibus Stock
and Incentive Plans).(Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10(iii)(w) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2001] [File No. 1-3932]

Whirlpool Corporation 2002 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan. (Z) [Incorporated by reference from Exhibit A to the Company’s proxy
statement for the 2002 annual meeting of stockholders] [File No. 1-3932]

Long-Term Credit Agreement dated as of June 1, 2001 among Whirlpool Corporation, Whirlpool Europe B.V., Certain Financial Institutions
and Bank of Amercia, N.A. as Administrative Agent and Citibank, N.A. as Syndication Agent, ABN AMRO Bank, N.V., Fleet National Bank
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Documentation Agents, Banc of America Securities LLC and Salomon Smith Barney Inc., Co-Lead
Arrangers and Joint Book Managers. [Incorporated by reference from Part Il — Other Information, Item 6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report o
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002] [File No. 1-3932]

Statement Re: Computation of the Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Annual Report to Stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2002
List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Power of Attorney

Section 906 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Section 906 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 10.(iii)

Whirlpool Retirement Benefits

Restoration Plan

(Effective as of January 1, 2002)
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Article 1. Establishment and Restatement of the Plan

1.1 Restatement of the Plan

Whirlpool Corporation previously established an excess benefit plan for certain of its eligible Employees known as the

“Whirlpool Retirement Benefits Restoration Plan” (the “Plan”), which Plan was adopted on December 13, 1976, and was
effective as of January 1, 1976, and was last previously amended and restated effective as of January 1, 1989. The Plan is herel
amended and restated in this instrument effective as of January 1, 2002.

1.2 Purpose

The purpose of the Plan is to provide to the Employee or to the Employee’s survivor or survivors eligible to receive payments
pursuant to the Salaried Plan that portion of said Employee’s retirement benefit or Employee’s survivor benefit which would have
been paid to the Employee or the Employee’s survivor or survivors under the Salaried Plan if the maximum annual benefits
limitation in the Salaried Plan had not been applied, as described in section 3(36) of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974 (the “Act”). Effective as of January 1, 1989, the Plan was amended to make up, as well, retirement benefits and
certain survivor's benefits that are not payable under the Salaried Plan due to compensation limitations under Code section
401(a)(17), and to this extent the Plan is intended to provide unfunded deferred compensation benefits for a select group of
management or highly compensated employees within the meaning of section 201(2) of the Act.

1.3 Application of the Plan

The terms of this Plan are applicable only for eligible Employees who are in the active employ of the Employer on or after
January 1, 2002.



Article 2. Definitions and Construction

2.1 Definitions

Whenever used in the Plan, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth below unless the context clearly indicates

otherwise.

(&) “Act” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as now in effect or hereafter amended.

(b) “Affiliate” means Affiliate as defined in the Salaried Plan.

(c) “Benefit Commencement Date” means the date as of which a Participant’s excess retirement benefit is to commence under
the Plan.

(d) “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(e) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now in effect or hereafter amended.

() “Committee” or “Human Resources Committee” means the Human Resources Committee appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

(g) “Company” means Whirlpool Corporation, and any organization that is a successor thereto.

(h) “Effective Date” means January 1, 1976.

(i) “Employee” means any employee of the Company or other Employer.

() “Employer” means the Company and any Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Company which is a party to a Salaried Plan. As of
January 1, 2002, the sole Employer under the Plan is Whirlpool Corporation.

(k) “Participant” means an Employee who has satisfied the conditions of sections 3.1 and 3.2.

() “Plan” means the Whirlpool Retirement Benefits Restoration Plan as provided herein and as subsequently amended from
time to time.

(m) “Salaried Plan” means the Whirlpool Employees Pension Plan as modified by the Part Il Supplement for the Salaried
Employees Participating Group.

(n) “Subsidiary” means a subsidiary of the Company as defined in the Salaried Plan.



2.2 Number

Except when otherwise indicated by the context, the definition of any term herein in the singular may also include the plural.

2.3 Severability

In the event any provision of the Plan shall be held invalid or illegal for any reason, any illegality or invalidity shall not affect the
remaining parts of the Plan, but the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid provision had never been
inserted, and the Company shall have the privilege and opportunity to correct and remedy such questions of illegality or invalidity
by amendment as provided in the Plan.

2.4 Applicable Law

The Code section 415 excess benefit provisions of the Plan are fully exempt from the provisions of the Act pursuant to section
4(b)(5) thereof. To the extent not preempted by the Act, the Plan shall be governed, construed, and administered in accordance
with the laws of the State of Michigan.



Article 3. Participation

3.1 Eligibility

An Employee who is entitled to retirement benefits, or a person entitled to survivor benefits, pursuant to the Salaried Plan will be
eligible for payments under this Plan, provided that payments which would otherwise have been made under the Salaried Plan
have been reduced by the limitation on such payments set forth in the Salaried Plan, as required by Code section 415 or section
401(a)(17).

3.2 Participation

A person who is eligible for retirement or survivor benefits as described in section 3.1 shall become a Participant in the Plan as o
the first day of the calendar year in which such person meets the eligibility conditions in section 3.1 above.



Article 4. Benefits

4.1 Amount of Benefits

(a) General. If benefits under the Salaried Plan become payable at or after age 65 in the form of a single life annuity, the
monthly excess retirement benefit payable to a Participant shall be equal to the difference between (1) and (2) where—

(1) is the amount of the monthly normal retirement benefit that would have been payable under the Salaried Plan if the
limitations in Code sections 415 and 401(a)(17) were not applied, taking into account any applicable Cash Balance
Account benefit under the Salaried Plan; and

(2) is the amount of the monthly normal retirement benefit payable under the Salaried Plan, taking into account any
applicable Cash Balance Account benefit under the Salaried Plan.

(b) Payments at Other Times and in Other Forms. If early retirement benefits or deferred vested retirement benefits payable
under the Salaried Plan become payable at a time other than age 65 or become payable in a form of payment other than a
single life annuity, the amount of the excess retirement benefit payable under the Plan shall be computed using the same
actuarial factors and assumptions, including early commencement factors, used to compute the benefit payable under the
Salaried Plan.

4.2 Forfeiture for Cause

Notwithstanding section 4.1, any vested retirement benefit payable under section 4.1 shall be forfeited, and a Participant, and the
Participant’s surviving spouse and any other beneficiary, shall have no right to such benefit if the Committee or the Company
determines that the Participant—

(a) has engaged in competition with the Company or an affiliate of the Company or has gone to work for a competitor; or

(b) has revealed trade secrets, or has otherwise engaged in a willful, deliberate, or gross act of commission or omission which i
injurious to the finances or reputation of the Company or its affiliate.

Provided, however, that following a Change in Control as described in section 6.1 of the Plan, a Participant’s benefit shall not be
forfeited if the Participant engages in the activities described in (a) above.



4.3 Form of Payment and Commencement Date

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Normal Form. The normal form of payment of an excess retirement benefit under the Plan shall be—

(1) asingle life annuity for an unmarried Participant, payable monthly as of the first day of the month and commencing at
the time specified in subsection (d) below; or

(2) for a married Participant, the Automatic Post—Retirement One—Half to Spouse Option under section 5.10(b) of the
Salaried Plan.

Optional Forms. Upon the written application by a Participant for an optional form of benefit payment under the Salaried
Plan, the benefit to which such Participant is entitled under subsection (a) above shall be payable under the same
“Post-Retirement Optional Retirement Benefits” form of payment and shall commence at the same time as under the
Salaried Plan, except that Cash Balance Account distribution and commencement options under the Whirlpool Employees
Pension Plan shall not be considered for these purposes. Any of these forms of payment shall be payable monthly (except &
lump sum payment) and shall have an actuarial value that is equivalent to the normal form of benefit, determined in
accordance with the actuarial factors used to determine such forms of payment under the Salaried Plan. Except as provided
in paragraph (c) below with respect to a deferred lump sum payment, the Participant’s beneficiary under the Plan shall be th
same as under the Salaried Plan.

Lump Sum Option. Upon application by a Participant for a lump sum optional payment under the Salaried Plan, the benefit
to which the Participant is entitled under subsection (a) above shall be payable in the form of a single lump sum. Such lump
sum shall have an actuarial value that is equivalent to the normal form of benefit, determined in accordance with the
actuarial factors used to determine lump sum benefits under the Salaried Plan. If the payment date of a lump sum payment |
deferred as provided in subsection (d) below, interest shall be credited thereon at the Salaried Plan Rate for each full month
from the date such amount becomes payable to the earlier of the Participant’'s Benefit Commencement Date or date of deatl
For this purpose, the “Salaried Plan Rate” means the interest rate used to calculate the Participant’s optional lump sum
payment under the Salaried Plan. If a Participant entitled to a deferred lump sum payment dies before such payment is mad
payment shall be made to such Participant’s beneficiary, designated at the time payment is deferred in accordance with
subsection (d) below and by means of such beneficiary designation form as required by the Committee. If no beneficiary
survives or is designated, or if the beneficiary designation is ineffective, payment shall be made to the Participant’s
beneficiary under the Salaried Plan.

Commencement Date. Excess retirement benefits payable under section 4.1 shall commence on the same date that benefit
commence under the Salaried Plan, except



that the Committee may in its discretion, after consulting with the Participant and requiring from the Participant such application or election prior to bene!
commencement under the Salaried Plan as it may deem necessary, determine that payment shall commence on a later Benefit Commencement Date.

(e) Small Amount Cashouts. If the Salaried Plan benefit is paid as a lump sum under section 6.5 of the Salaried Plan, and the person receiving such lump
sum payment is entitled to a benefit under this Plan, the benefit under this Plan shall be paid as a lump sum and at the same time as the Salaried Plan
benefit or as soon thereafter as administratively feasible.

4.4 Preretirement Death Benefits

A preretirement death benefit shall be payable under this section to a surviving spouse or other beneficiary of the Participant under the Salaried Plan, if a
preretirement death benefit payable to such person under section 5.6, 5.8, or 5.9 of the Salaried Plan is affected by the limitations in Code section 415 or
401(a)(17) or related limitations. Such preretirement death benefit shall be computed using the same factors and assumptions used to compute the applicable
preretirement death benefit under the Salaried Plan and shall be paid in the same form as such preretirement death benefit, except that the amount of the
preretirement death benefit shall be computed on the same basis as retirement payments are determined under section 4.1, and the surviving spouse or othe
Salaried Plan beneficiary may defer commencement of benefits hereunder in accordance with rules established by the Committee. Preretirement death bene
shall be forfeitable in the same manner as retirement benefits in accordance with the provisions of section 4.2.

4.5 Certain Post—Retirement Death Benefits

A lump sum post-retirement death benefit shall be payable to the beneficiary of a retired Participant to the extent that a lump sum post-retirement death ben
is payable to such person under section 5.7 of the Salaried Plan is affected by the compensation limitations in Code section 401(a)(17). Lump sum
post-retirement death benefits shall be forfeitable in the same manner as retirement benefits in accordance with the provisions of section 4.2.



Article 5. Administration and General Provisions

5.1 Administration

The Human Resources Committee (the “Committee”) shall be charged with the administration and interpretation of the Plan but may delegate the ministerial
duties hereunder to such persons as it determines. The Committee may adopt such rules as may be necessary or appropriate for the proper administration of
Plan. To the extent that such rules are not adopted, applicable rules relating to the administration of the Salaried Plan shall govern. The Committee shall have
exclusive right, in its discretion, to make any finding of fact necessary or appropriate for any purpose under the Plan, including but not limited to the
determination of the eligibility for and the amount of any benefit payable under the Plan. The Committee shall have the exclusive right, in its discretion, to
interpret the terms and provisions of the Plan and to determine any and all questions arising under the Plan or in connection with the administration thereof,
including, without limitation, the right to remedy or resolve possible ambiguities, inconsistencies, or omissions, by general rule or particular decision. All
findings of fact, determinations, interpretations, and decisions of the Committee shall be conclusive and binding upon all persons having or claiming to have a
interest or right under the Plan and shall be given the maximum possible deference allowed by law. Benefits under the Plan shall be paid only if the Committe
its sole discretion determines that a Participant is entitled to the benefits.

5.2 Funding of the Plan

Benefits under the Plan shall be paid out of the general assets of the Employer. Benefits payable under the Plan shall be reflected on the accounting records
Employer but shall not be construed to create or require the creation of a trust, custodial, or escrow account. No Employee or Participant shall have any right,
title, or interest whatever in or to any investment reserves, accounts, or funds that the Employer may purchase, establish, or accumulate to aid in providing
benefits under the Plan. Nothing contained in the Plan, and no action taken pursuant to its provisions, shall create a trust or fiduciary relationship of any kind
between the Employer and an Employee or any other person. Neither a Participant nor survivor or beneficiary of an Employee shall acquire any interest great
than that of an unsecured creditor.

5.3 Payment of Expenses

The expenses of administering the Plan shall be paid by the Company.

5.4 Indemnity for Liability

The Company shall indemnify each member of the Committee, and each other person acting at the direction of the Committee, against any and all claims, los
damages, expenses, including counsel fees, incurred by such persons and any liability, including any amounts paid in settlement with the Committee’s appro
arising from such person’s action or failure to act, except when the same is judicially determined to be attributable to the gross negligence or willful miscondut
of such person.



5.5 Incompetence

Every person receiving or claiming benefits under the Plan shall be conclusively presumed to be mentally competent until the date on which the Committee
receives a written notice, in a form and manner acceptable to the Committee, that such person is incompetent, and that a guardian, conservator, or other per:
legally vested with the care of such person’s person or estate has been appointed; provided, however, that if the Committee shall find that any person to whol
benefit is payable under the Plan is unable to care for such person’s affairs because of incompetency, any payment due (unless a prior claim therefor shall he
been made by a duly appointed legal representative) may be paid as provided in the Salaried Plan. Any such payment so made shall be a complete discharg
liability therefor under the Plan.

5.6 Nonalienation

No benefit payable at any time under the Plan shall be subject in any manner to alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, attachment, garnishment, or
encumbrance of any kind, and shall not be subject to or reached by any legal or equitable process (including execution, garnishment, attachment, pledge, or
bankruptcy) in satisfaction of any debt, liability, or obligation, prior to receipt. Any attempt to alienate, sell, transfer, assign, pledge, or otherwise encumber an
such benefit, whether presently or thereafter payable, shall be void.

5.7 Employer—-Employee Relationship

The establishment of this Plan shall not be construed as conferring any legal or other rights upon any Employee or any person for a continuation of employme
nor shall it interfere with the rights of the Employer to discharge any Employee or otherwise act with relation to the Employee. The Employer may take any
action (including discharge) with respect to any Employee or other person and may treat such person without regard to the effect which such action or treatm
might have upon such person as a Participant of this Plan.

5.8 Effect on Other Benefit Plans

Amounts credited or paid under this Plan shall not be considered to be compensation for the purposes of the Salaried Plan or any other plans maintained by f
Employer. The treatment of such amounts under other employee benefit plans shall be determined pursuant to the provisions of such plans.

5.9 Tax Liability

The Employer may withhold from any payment of benefits hereunder any taxes required to be withheld and such sum as the Employer may reasonably estim.
to be necessary to cover any taxes for which the Employer may be liable and which may be assessed with regard to such payment.
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Article 6. Change in Control, Amendment, and Termination

6.1 Change in Control

In the event of a “Change in Control” where the Company is not the surviving corporation, it is intended that the Plan shall be continued and that any such
continuing, resulting, or transferee entity shall assume all liabilities of the Company hereunder. For this purpose, a “Change in Control” shall be defined as sef
forth in section 10.6(d) of the Whirlpool Employees Pension Plan, as amended.

6.2 Amendment and Termination

The Company reserves the right to change or discontinue this Plan by action of the Board of Directors in its discretion; provided, however, that in the case of
person to whom benefits under this Plan had accrued upon termination of employment prior to such Board of Directors action, or in the case of any Employee
who would have been entitled to benefits under this Plan had the Employee’s employment ceased prior to such change or discontinuance, the benefits such
person had accrued under this Plan prior to such change or discontinuance shall not be adversely affected thereby.

*kkkkkk Kk k%

In Witness Whereof, the Company has caused this amended and restated Plan to be signed and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed by its duly authorize
officers effective as of January 1, 2002, on this 20th day of December, 2002.

Whirlpool Corporation

Attest: By:
/sl David R. Whitwam
David R. Whitwam
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
By:

/sl Robert T.
Kenagy

Robert T. Kenagy

Associate General
Counsel

and Corporate
Secretary
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EXHIBIT 12—RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Earnings
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and other items

Portion of rents representative of the interest factor
Interest on indebtedness

Amortization of debt expense and premium

WEFC preferred stock dividend

Fixed charges
Portion of rents representative of the interest factor

Interest on indebtedness
Amortization of debt expense and premium
WFC preferred stock dividend

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

EXHIBIT 12

Year Ended
December 31,

2002

$495
18
143

$164

4.0

2001

$ 93
25
162
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Whirlpool Corporation

Building unmatched loyalty one customer at a time.
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« customer Ida & Jamal Simington  location Bourbonnais, lllinois, USA « occupations Ida, Facilities Manager; Jamal, State Trooper

“Polara puts
me ahead of
the game,”
says lda
Simington.

“I run out of
work at five,
pick my son
up and go to
the Y. In the
meantime,
my dinner is
cooking.
And if we
don't get
home on
time, | don't
have to
worry about
food burning
or drying
out.” In her
home, the
Whirlpool
Polara
refrigerated
range is the
star. “It's the
first thing
everyone
wants to see
when they
come over,”
says lda.



[Photo Appears Here]

Whirlpool Polara refrigerated range ¢

Combining cooking with the convenience of refrigeration, the Whirlpool Polara refrigerated range keeps meals refrigerated when you are away, starting the
cooking process when you want. If dinner is delayed, the Polara range automatically shifts to “warm” mode and then back to “refrigeration” to keep and
protect the food. Polara refrigerated ranges meet the needs of families on the go.



[Photo Appears Here]

» Whirlpool frost-free refrigerator

The Whirlpool frost—free refrigerator offers far more than sleek design. The refrigerator offers a fast chilling capability and humidity controls that keep
vegetables fresh longer. The Fast Forward Ice feature gives customers the ability to make ice quickly and store it for long periods of time, a unique and
welcome feature in hot climates.



[Photo Appears Here]

“When you see it for the first time, you don’t want anything else,” says Madhumita Mazumder about her new Whirlpool frost-free refrigerator. “It has sleek
features and great looks compared to others. And because it is a Whirlpool, | knew it would be good.” Parag Mazumder likes the refrigerator’'s humidity
control and fast chilling capabilities. “Whirlpool is the best product on the market,” he says.

« customer Parag & Madhumita Mazumder ¢ location New Delhi, India ¢ occupations Parag, Sales Manager; Madhumita, Business Executive
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For Rob and Diane Ahle, the garage has always been Rob’s workshop and the catch-all storage space for the home. “My wife used to be horrified when
people saw it,” says Rob. “Now, since we had the Gladiator GarageWorks system installed, she tells me | have to bring guests through.” “This year,” says
Diane, “| had a Christmas party, and everyone left through the garage.”

« customer Rob & Diane Ahle « location Brookfield, Connecticut, USA ¢ occupations Rob, Professional Chef; Diane, Sales Assistant
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Gladiator GarageWorks ¢

Designed specifically for the garage, Gladiator GarageWorks offers modular garage accessories, the GearWall storage system and garage appliances,
including extreme-temperature—proof refrigerators and a garage trash compactor. Gladiator GarageWorks turn the garage into a stylish showplace as it
fulfills the family’s practical needs for an organized storage and work area. Its garage—-tough construction and mobile modular units let customers turn their
“junk drawer of the house” into the “best garage on the block.”
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*Brastemp bottom freezer refrigerator

The Brastemp bottom freezer refrigerator offers a fast freezing function to ensure high quality food storage. The bottom freezer's large drawers and interna
lighting make food access easy. The frost—free system provides efficient distribution of cold air, keeping food fresh longer.
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Elizabeth Branco has a new career. She is enrolled in culinary school, where she’s pursuing her lifelong passion for cooking. At home, Elizabeth’s kitchen
filled with products that she trusts — Whirlpool's Brastemp brand. “My grandmother bought Brastemp products and so did my mother,” says Elizabeth, who
recently purchased a new Brastemp bottom freezer refrigerator. “It's difficult to find products with the same quality features as Brastemp brand. They are tt

vanguard.”

« customer Elizabeth Branco ¢ location Sao Paulo, Brazil » occupation Retired Medical Office Administrator
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“When we built our home, one of our goals was to have the ability to entertain large groups of people,” says Tammy McClintick. That's why the McClinticks
decided to install a KitchenAid briva in—sink dishwasher in their second kitchen, which is at the hub of gatherings when guests, friends and neighbors drop
The McClinticks’ passion for entertaining also is reflected in their main kitchen, where all their appliances carry the KitchenAid brand.

« customer Tammy & Jeff McClintick ¢ location Brownsburg, Indiana, USA ¢ occupation Tammy, Homemaker; Jeff, Business Executive
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briva in-sink dishwasher ¢

The KitchenAid briva in—sink dishwasher is a perfect companion to a full-size dishwasher or the ideal primary dishwasher for people who have limited
kitchen space. The briva Quick Wash feature cleans up to three times faster than a full-size dishwasher. When not in use, the wash basket is easily remov
provide a fully functional sink. The briva in—sink dishwasher also includes a cutting board that fits over the stainless steel cover.
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» Whirlpool Dreamspace clothes washer

The Whirlpool Dreamspace clothes washer offers a capacity 60 percent larger than standard front-load washers. The Dreamspace washer reduces the nu
of laundry loads, and conserves water and energy. The Whirlpool 6th Sense sensor system distinguishes differing fabrics and adjusts the cycles for perfeci

cleaning. The Dreamspace washer is Europe’s version of the popular Whirlpool Duet washer, which was successfully introduced in 2002 throughout the
United States.



[Photo Appears Here]

“My boys play rugby, and every weekend | used to spend hours scrubbing rugby kits to get the mud out before washing them,” says Mary McCurran. “Now
just put the kits in all muddy, and they come out clean. On a normal machine, | would do five or six loads a day. With a Dreamspace, | might get away with
two or three loads a day. It has made a huge difference in my life.”

« customer Mary McCurran ¢ location Purley, England ¢ occupation Secretary and Mother



eInspired by our bold innovations and designs, customers around the globe trust Whirlpool to make their lives easier. More than ever before, our brands ar
connecting with customers in ways that will last a lifetime.
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Whirlpool Corporation is the world’s leading manufacturer and marketer of major home appliances, with annual sales of over $11 billion, 68,000 employees
and nearly 50 manufacturing and technology research centers around the globe. The company markets Whirlpool, KitchenAid, Brastemp, Bauknecht, Con:
and other major brand names to consumers in more than 170 countries. Additional information about the company can be found on the Internet at
www.whirlpoolcorp.com.
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Chairman'’s Letter

[Photo Appears Here]
*David R. Whitwam

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS — Whirlpool faced many challenges last year, and we responded appropriately and aggressively to the changing dynamics of
world economies and the markets in which we participate. As a result, 2002 was an important year of milestones and accomplishments that reflect the streng
our operations and the company’s ability to deliver consistent, ongoing improvements in operating and revenue performance. For example:

*Net revenues exceeded $11 billion, a record for the company.

*Excluding one-time charges, full-year core earnings of $6.07 per diluted share marked a record level of performance for our operations.

*Through our strategic focus of building unmatched levels of customer loyalty for our brands globally, we extended our brand leadership position worldwide.

*Our brands set a record for the most product innovations ever introduced by the company in a single year, reinforcing Whirlpool’s standing as the innovation
leader within the appliance industry. Examples of these innovations are highlighted throughout this report.

*We successfully integrated two strategically important acquisitions during the year, and, in doing so, strengthened our manufacturing and brand positions in
North America and Europe.

*We identified the activities and finalized the charges of our most significant and important restructuring effort in the company'’s history. When fully
implemented, the restructuring will reduce ongoing structural costs by more than $200 million a year. Changes to date have already strengthened our global
platform and improved our manufacturing cost position.

eImprovements in global procurement, technology, product development and manufacturing helped drive record levels of productivity savings.
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*Our operations generated $290 million of free cash flow as company-wide efforts resulted in record low levels of working capital.

RECORD REVENUES

Revenue growth across most regions during the year led to record net sales of more than $11 billion and solidified Whirlpool's position as the world’s top maj
appliance manufacturer and marketer. Contributing to the sales improvement was the continued growth of the Whirlpool brand — the No. 1 selling appliance
brand in the world. Whirlpool Corporation is strongly positioned as the market leader in the United States, Canada, Latin America, Central Europe and India.
company also holds the No. 2 market position in Mexico, and the No. 3 spot in Western and Central Europe. Whirlpool also continues to build a strong and
growing presence in China.

Throughout the year, our operations leveraged Whirlpool’'s global capabilities and regional market positions to deliver the record revenue growth and extend c
brand leadership.

RESTRUCTURING

We recorded final charges for the company’s global restructuring effort that we announced in December of 2000. Since then, the initiative has resulted in
restructuring and related charges totaling $373 million, and the elimination of more than 7,000 positions worldwide. Much of the restructuring initiative focusec
on Whirlpool's European operation. The initiative has created a more cost—effective global structure that is better aligned to support the company’s value
creation strategies. When fully implemented, the corporate restructuring effort is expected to result in annualized savings of more than $200 million.

NET AND OPERATING RESULTS

A number of one—time charges contributed to a net loss of $5.68 per diluted share in 2002. The most significant of these charges related to the company’s
adoption of the change in accounting principle pertaining to goodwill (Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142), final costs for the company’s
global restructuring initiative and the write—off of aircraft-lease assets following the bankruptcy of UAL Corp.

Excluding these one-time charges, our operations delivered full-year record core operating earnings of $6.07 per diluted share, an 11-percent improvement
from comparable earnings in 2001, which was a solid achievement that met our growth expectations. These results were driven by the combination of record
sales, unprecedented levels of product innovation, significant cost savings from productivity improvements and the benefits from restructuring.

Details about the charges, their effect on 2002 net earnings, and the reconciliation of net earnings to non-GAAP core earnings are discussed in the
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report.

REGIONAL GROWTH THROUGH ACQUISITION

Whirlpool bolstered its global position during the year through the acquisition of two strategic businesses in key markets. In Mexico, we completed the purcha
of Vitromatic S.A. de C.V., which had been a joint venture between Whirlpool and Vitro S.A. since 1987. Vitromatic, now called Whirlpool Mexico, is a leading
appliance manufacturer that gives us direct access to the fast-growing Mexican market. The acquisition extends our North American manufacturing base anc
provides additional export opportunities to countries in the Caribbean, Central America and northern parts of South America, as well as to the United States. |
Central Europe, Whirlpool acquired Polar S.A., a leading appliance manufacturer with the No. 1 brand name in Poland. The acquisition of Polar improves our
brand presence in Central Europe and provides Whirlpool Europe with a low—cost manufacturing source to serve the entire region.

RECORD PACE OF INNOVATION

Our brands introduced a record number of product innovations to consumers worldwide in 2002. The introductions contributed to our record sales results and
helped drive higher levels of customer loyalty to our brands. Over the last three years, we have built and embedded within our global enterprise the skills and
capabilities required to discover, develop and rapidly bring to market true innovation. These innovations are giving our brands a sustainable competitive
advantage in the marketplace and creating value for our customers, trade partners and shareholders.
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BUILDING CUSTOMER LOYALTY

Whirlpool’s growth strategy — “Building unmatched customer loyalty”— is unlike any other within the appliance industry. The strategy focuses on winning the
hearts and minds of our customers. We know that loyal customers are recommending our brands to others; that they are requesting and repurchasing our bre
over those of competitors; and that they are beginning to upgrade their appliances because they trust the innovation and value that our brands deliver. Initiati
that lead to higher levels of customer loyalty, such as our innovation process, result in improved revenue growth, margin expansion and trade support for our
brands.

Because innovation is such an important driver of customer loyalty, we are expanding our efforts to transfer innovation capabilities and skills to employees
everywhere. Approximately 600 innovation mentors and consultants assisted and trained employees involved in development projects last year, and the num
will grow as our innovation efforts continue in 2003.

Another key aspect of customer loyalty involves the experiences that touch customers before, during and long after the initial purchase. Each of our brands is
putting in place a complete set of experiences — including brand advertising, the in—store purchase, call center interactions and ongoing customer
communications — that will help forge lifelong relationships with our customers.

Within our operations, every person and function has a role to play in building customer loyalty. For example, each operation is taking the company’s Six-Sig
quality improvement process to a higher level by first placing the needs of the customer at the center of every function — such as manufacturing, technology,
marketing and administrative support — and then driving down all unnecessary costs. Resources that become available through this enterprise-wide effort are
reinvested in new initiatives that are focused squarely on improving the brand experiences of our customers.

Ultimately, the success of the customer loyalty strategy depends on the leadership capabilities of our global management team, as well as the skills and
involvement of our employees. We have instituted a process to assess and develop our leaders around a simple global leadership model that will help prepar
them to lead in today’s complex and challenging environments.

DIVERSE CUSTOMERS, EMPLOYEES AND IDEAS

Much of our customer loyalty strategy is built upon the same foundation that supports the company’s approach to diversity and inclusion. For example,
understanding and embracing differences and ideas of customers and coworkers are essential first steps in our innovation process. Diversity within Whirlpool
creates the originality and relevancy of ideas needed to solve unique problems. And because diverse employees reflect our global customer base, Whirlpool
a keen understanding of our customers’ needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Embedded in our company, as well as our Board of Directors, is the deeply held value that continues to guide us: “There is no right way to do a wrong thing.”
This basic code of conduct underlies the company’s long tradition of strong and independent corporate governance. For example, of Whirlpool's 12-member
board, ten are independent directors who are highly regarded business professionals with significant and relevant management experience. The Whirlpool bo
principles and processes — which include internal annual reviews of board practices, the board selection process and the company’s code of ethics — have be
place for many years.

Whirlpool fully supports the steps that have been taken by business and government to make sure that companies have the necessary values and governing
principles that will assure trust from all stakeholders.

OUTLOOK

We enter 2003 with continuing economic uncertainty in most of the global markets we serve. We have taken the appropriate cost and productivity actions to ¢
with that uncertainty. We believe that Whirlpool’s global leadership position, the company’s unique global platform, and innovation activities focused on
building customer loyalty will drive continued performance improvement in 2003 and beyond.



/sl David R. Whitwam
David R. Whitwam
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

February 27, 2003
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Financial Highlights

millions of dollars, except per share data 2002 2001 % change
Net sales $11,016 $10,343 6.5%
Core earnings, which excludes non-recurring items 420 371 13.2%
Per share on a diluted basis 6.07 5.45

Earnings from continuing operations 262 34 670.6%
Per share on a diluted basis 3.78 0.50

Net earnings (loss) (394) 21

Per share on a diluted basis (5.68) 0.31

Stockholders’ equity 739 1,458 (49.3)%
Total assets 6,631 6,967 (4.8)%
Return on equity * 14.8% 1.3%

Return on equity excluding non-recurring items 27.4% 22.2%

Return on assets * 3.4% 0.4%

Return on assets excluding non-recurring items 6.1% 5.6%

Book value per share $ 10.67 $ 2144 $ (50.2)%
Dividends per share 1.36 1.36

Average dividend yield 2.2% 2.4%

Share Price

High $ 79.80 74.20

Low 39.23 45.88

Close 52.22 73.33 (28.8)%
Total return to shareholders (five year annualized) 1.4% 12.2%

Shares outstanding (in 000’s) 68,226 67,215

Number of stockholders 8,556 8,840

Number of employees 68,272 61,923

Non-recurring items include cumulative effects of changes in accounting principle, discontinued operations, restructuring and related charges and product
recall charges in 2002 and 2001 as well the write—off of asset impairments in 2002.

* Refer to Eleven-Year Consolidated Statistical Review (pages 72-73) for more information about return on equity and asset calculations.
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President’'s Message

[Photo Appears Here]
«Jeff Fettig

President and Chief Operating Officer

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS - Whirlpool's regional operations used the leverage of our global platform to help drive record sales and a solid operating
performance for the company. In addition to top—line growth generated by our brands through Whirlpool’s ongoing introduction of consumer-relevant
innovation to the marketplace, our operations contributed savings from productivity and restructuring initiatives that helped improve the company’s operating
performance.

In North America, our operations turned in an outstanding performance, highlighted by record sales and operating profit. Whirlpool’'s operations in Europe
showed solid improvement as well, as did Whirlpool Asia. And in context of the significant economic and industry challenges within Latin America last year, ot
operations there turned in a very strong performance.

To sustain the productivity savings that are being achieved by our operations, we have embedded our Operational Excellence process — based on Six—Sigmz
lean manufacturing skills and capabilities — within each of our worldwide manufacturing facilities. Based on these capabilities, our operations turned in a recot
improvement in total cost productivity in 2002. A parallel process is being instituted across the entire enterprise in an effort to eliminate additional costs and tc
create as many resources as possible to invest in innovation that builds customer loyalty to our brands.

During the year, the company’s acquisitions in Mexico and Poland, as well as restructuring activities worldwide, strengthened the manufacturing and cost
positions of our operations. Rationalization of manufacturing in each region coupled with the migration of certain global products to low—cost countries — such
China, India, Slovakia and Brazil — enabled our operations to compete effectively against emerging global competitors.
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Increasingly, we are leveraging resources from our global platform to expand our portfolio of innovative products for global export. For example, Whirlpool's
top-rated microwave hood combination ovens are designed at our technology facilities in Sweden, produced at our manufacturing facilities in China, and
marketed and sold in the United States. Our operations in Brazil manufacture refrigerators with innovative features and designs that appeal to consumers
worldwide. In 2002, the region exported these popular refrigerators to Europe, and, through the capabilities of our global product development process,
transferred the platform to Whirlpool India. The enthusiastic consumer response to the 2002 introduction helped Whirlpool India claim the No. 1 refrigeration
position in the country.

Whirlpool’s global platform provides our operations with resources and capabilities no other manufacturer can match. Whirlpool’s global procurement, product
development and information technology organizations help our operations reduce costs, improve efficiencies and introduce a continuous stream of relevant
innovation to consumers.

Our global procurement organization leverages the volume purchasing power of our worldwide operations to eliminate costs and redundancies across region:
Cross—regional teams of product development engineers collaborate on innovation initiatives for regional and global distribution. And our information
technology organization provides Internet tools that cut the complexity and costs of doing business for Whirlpool and its trade partners.

We also use the global platform to transfer key innovations and processes across regions and brands. Perhaps the best example to date is the success of
Whirlpool’s laundry innovations. In 2002, the Whirlpool Duet high—efficiency clothes washer and dryer pair was rolled out across the United States with
consumer and trade partner response significantly outpacing capacity.

The popular Duet pair emerged from Whirlpool's global product development process, and involved teams of employees representing technology, manufactu
and brand marketing from our U.S. and Europe operations. Encouraged by the popularity of the Duet washer with U.S. consumers, Whirlpool Europe introduc
branded versions of its own late last year.

In the U.S., consumer demand for the Duet washer and dryer, as well as for earlier laundry innovations such as the Whirlpool Calypso clothes washer, helpec
create and expand the industry’s high—efficiency laundry segment. Whirlpool grew its share position in this premium end of the laundry segment by more thar
70 percent in 2002.

We expect Whirlpool’s ongoing introductions of relevant laundry innovation, such as the Whirlpool Family Studio, will continue to capture the interest of
consumers and generate profitable growth for the company and its shareholders. Whirlpool's innovation process will continue to drive growth across all our
product categories.

Part of the success of our brands and innovations is based on the ability of our global operations to execute the company’s global value-added trade and
distribution strategies. In North America, for example, Whirlpool holds the No. 1 appliance position with the top national appliance retailers and buying groups
Our trade partners know the level of value and consumer appeal that is tied to Whirlpool's innovation, as well as the importance of having trained salespeople
who can effectively demonstrate that value to customers. Whirlpool innovation delivered to customers through value—added retail and distribution formats is a
winning formula for Whirlpool and our trade partners.

As our operations work to align and leverage the resources of our global platform to meet the needs of our customers, Whirlpool’s brands will continue to
introduce meaningful and relevant innovations and create new services in ways that create value. Throughout the regional business summaries that follow, yc
will see highlights of innovations and accomplishments from each of our regional operations in 2002. Achievements such as these are helping our operations
capture the attention of consumers worldwide, increase the support from our trade partners and create the unique customer experiences that are building
unmatched levels of customer loyalty to our brands.

Isl Jeff Fettig
Jeff Fettig
President and Chief Operating Officer

February 27, 2003
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North America Operating Review

*United States, Canada and Mexico

[Photo Appears Here]

«KitchenAid stand mixer

An American culinary icon, the KitchenAid stand mixer, year in and year out, retains its position as one of the most recognizable kitchen appliances — and doe
so with colorful pizzazz, such as this 2002 tangerine favorite.

*Whirlpool Satina look

[Photo Appears Here]

Giving the stainless steel look without the hassles of stainless steel, the Whirlpool Satina finish refrigerator is a breeze to clean, hides fingerprints and keeps t
family message board alive by attracting magnets.

KEY STATISTICS

*No. 1 position in the industry
*$7.3 billion in 2002 sales
*$830 million in 2002 operating profit

*Approximately 32,000 employees

BRANDS

United States KitchenAid, Whirlpool, Roper by Whirlpool Corporation, Estate, Gladiator
Canada Inglis,Whirlpool, KitchenAid

Mexico Whirlpool, Acros, Supermatic, Crolls

PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS

Air Purifiers, Automatic Dryers, Automatic Washers, Built-in Ovens, Countertop Appliances, Dehumidifiers, Dishwashers, Freezers, Hot Water Heaters, Ice
Makers, Microwave Ovens, Ranges, Refrigerators, Room Air Conditioners, Trash Compactors

HEADQUARTERS

Benton Harbor, Ml

MANUFACTURING LOCATIONS



United States LaVergne, TN; Findlay, OH; Marion, OH; Greenville, OH; Clyde, OH; Benton Harbor, MI; Evansville, IN; Fort Smith, AR; Tulsa, OK; Oxford,
MS

Canada Montmagny, QU

Mexico Monterrey, Reynosa, Celaya, Puebla

NEW PRODUCTS INTRODUCED IN 2002

*Whirlpool — Polara refrigerated range; Family Studio concept of appliances and cabinetry; Duet fabric—care system; Satina refrigerator; Personal Valet clothe
vitalizing system; microwave hood combination with AccuWave technology

«KitchenAid — briva in—sink dishwasher; stand mixers in tangerine, lavender and other colors; a blade coffee grinder; kitchen textiles; a new line of toasters; a
self-designed dishwasher; a 36—inch built-in oven; counter—-depth, bottom-mount refrigerator

*Gladiator — GarageWorks appliances and organizing components for the garage
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[Photo Appears Here]

«David L. Swift Executive Vice President, North American Region

In the United States, record-low interest rates and the resulting consumer spending powered the economy — as well as the appliance industry — throughout tt
year. Growth in the U.S. major home appliance industry outpaced the record level set in 2001 by nearly 7 percent.

Whirlpool’'s North American operations led the industry with a remarkable performance in 2002, bettering the previous year’s all-time records for sales and
operating profit. For the year, total revenue of $7.3 billion increased 11 percent. Much of the improvement was based on the success of new product introduc
and cost savings from productivity improvements and restructuring.

Another significant achievement in 2002 was Whirlpool's successful integration of Mexico—based Vitromatic S.A. de C.V. — now called Whirlpool Mexico —
which the company acquired last year. The acquisition has given Whirlpool greater access to the fast-growing market in Mexico, and enhanced our export an
supply positions throughout the hemisphere. During the fourth quarter of the year, Whirlpool Mexico delivered brand-share growth and record sales.

Whirlpool Canada also delivered an exceptional year of strong revenue and operating performance.

Particularly satisfying in 2002 was the continued acceptance by consumers of our leading brands, especially Whirlpool and KitchenAid, both of which recorde
strong revenue growth.

Through our strong consumer brands, Whirlpool North America introduced a number of innovative products and services to our customers in 2002. The
introductions, as well as other new developments in non-product areas of customer relationships, helped drive a record Whirlpool brand share. KitchenAid br
also made strong strides in further positioning itself as one of North America’s leading top—of-the-line brands for both major and portable appliances.

The innovations are part of Whirlpool's strategy of building customer loyalty by applying a deeper, fundamental understanding of our customers’ needs, desire
and lifestyles. A prime example is the Whirlpool Duet clothes washer and dryer pair (HE3t under Sears, Roebuck and Co.’s Kenmore Elite brand), which was
launched nationwide in 2002. The Duet washer blends European front-load technology with a striking design that appeals to U.S. consumers interested in
large—load wash capacity, excellent energy efficiency and cost savings, and the best overall fabric-care performance.

Other new and exciting innovations for 2002 included the Whirlpool Polara range, the world’s first refrigerated range, and the KitchenAid briva dishwasher, a
unique in—sink dishwasher. The Polara range received wide attention for offering a genuine solution to busy parents who want to enjoy sit—-down dining with
their families, but have little time in their schedules to prepare the meals. The briva in—sink dishwasher complements the culinary enthusiasts who need quick
and easy cleaning solutions without having to run their much larger conventional dishwashers.

Dozens of other new-to—market products and solutions were introduced during the year. Among the highlights were Whirlpool Gladiator GarageWorks, a tota
organizing and appliance system for the garage, and Whirlpool Family Studio, a suite of cabinetry and fabric care innovations that transform the traditional
laundry space into a center for family gathering and activity.

Whirlpool also introduced the new Satina stainless—look refrigerator, which delivers the aesthetic appeal of stainless steel without its drawbacks. The Satina
finish is easy to clean, masks irksome fingerprints and holds magnets that keep messages in place.
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North America Operating Review (continued)

[PHOTO APPEARS HERE]

YWhirlpool Family Studio

The Whirlpool Family Studio is a center of home activity that also serves as an efficient, functional fabric—care space. Customers make use of breakthrough
fabric—care products, such as the Whirlpool Personal Valet clothes vitalizer, which are smartly integrated within attractive cabinetry. Family Studio gives home
builders, designers and remodelers the innovative products and design flexibility to meet the unique space requirements of their customers.

A YThe Whirlpool ImPress ironing station features an easy-to—access, adjustable board, storage for an iron while it cools, and automatic shut-off controls.

B YThe Whirlpool SinkSpa jetted sink gently cleans delicate garments and other hand-washables with specially designed water jets.

C YThe Whirlpool DryAire drying cabinet shaves hours off the air-drying process for heavy woolens and bulky garments, while gently drying delicates.

D YThe Whirlpool Duet washer and dryer pair delivers stylish design, unbeatable water and energy efficiency, and time—saving washing capacity.
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To effectively display and explain this type of new innovation to consumers, Whirlpool and an increasing number of its North American trade partners and
contract—-home builders present these products in unique store and model-home formats that enhance the purchase experience. These displays break away
traditional “sea of white” retail formats and invite consumers to become more engaged in buying and understanding how Whirlpool appliances can benefit the
lives. Consumer demand for Whirlpool innovation has helped the company build and strengthen its leading position with the region’s top value-added
distribution partners.

Taking customer involvement even further, Whirlpool opened the Insperience studio in Atlanta, a 6,000—sq.—ft. facility that has working kitchen and laundry
displays, and features the latest products from Whirlpool and KitchenAid. The Insperience studio gives customers, builders, architects, designers and trade
partners a hands—on appliance experience, while giving Whirlpool employees more insight into customer needs and desires.

Insperience studio expands upon the company’s hands—on approach to interacting with customers. The KitchenAid Experience store in Greenville, Ohio, alsc
provides customers with an interactive environment that features KitchenAid major and portable appliances. Visitors can discover the history of the KitchenAi
brand, participate in cooking classes, and shop for KitchenAid portable appliances and cooking accessories.

Additionally, Whirlpool sponsors the House of Innoventions at Innoventions at Epbetever-changing theme park of discovery at the Walt Disney World
Resort in Lake Buena Vista, Florida. Millions of guests each year tour the popular attraction that showcases the latest in home innovation, including a prototyj
Internet-ready refrigerator from KitchenAid.

In addition, the company has been using design and style as a strategic tool to create appealing visual connections with consumers on the retail floor. The de
community is taking note as well. The Smithsonian Institution’s Cooper—Hewitt National Design Museum presented Whirlpool with the 2002 National Design
Award for Corporate Achievement — one of many prestigious design awards that the company received during the year.

The company continues to offer consumers a full range of energy—efficient products that reduce home energy costs. WKiResS@E qualified
appliances, such as the Whirlpool Duet washer and dryer and Conquest refrigerator, provide exceptional levels of energy efficiency that meet or exceed
government guidelines.

An ongoing fundraising partnership between KitchenAid and the Susan G. Komen Breast Cancer Foundation generated more than half a million dollars in 20
for the fight against breast cancer. Each sale of a pink KitchenAid stand mixer generates an additional $50 donation to the Komen Foundation. Since 2001,
KitchenAid has raised more than $1 million through the sale of the mixer.

Whirlpool continued its partnership with Habitat for Humanity in 2002 by donating approximately 11,000 appliances to Habitat homes built in North America.
Whirlpool donates anERGY STAR® qualified refrigerator and free—standing range to every Habitat home built in North America. Through Habitat, Whirlpool
has helped improve the lives of more than 15,000 families.
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Europe Operating Review

YEurope, Middle East and Africa

[PHOTO APPEARS HERE]

[PHOTO APPEARS HERE]

YWhirlpool and Bauknecht built-in ovens

The newest line of built-in ovens from Whirlpool and Bauknecht takes elegance and practicality to the next level. The ovens use select materials, such as
stainless steel, formed into a variety of stylish designs that are easy to use and clean.

YMax! Advance microwave oven

A prime example of the innovations that can be gleaned from consumer insight, the award-winning Whirlpool Max! Advance microwave oven incorporates
rounded, space—saving shape, along with an on—door control panel and rear ventilation system.

KEY STATISTICS

YNo.3 position in Western and Central Europe
Y$2.2 billion in 2002 sales
Y$81 million in 2002 operating profit

YApproximately 14,000 employees

BRANDS

Whirlpool, Bauknecht, Ignis, Polar, Laden in France, KIC in South Africa

PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS

Automatic Dryers, Automatic Washers, Built—in Hobs, Built—-in Ovens, Compressors, Dishwashers, Free—standing Cookers, Freezers, Microwave Ovens,
Ranges, Refrigerators

OPERATIONS CENTER

Comerio, ltaly

MANUFACTURING LOCATIONS



France Amiens

Germany Neunkirchen, Schorndorf
Italy Naples, Siena, Cassinetta, Trento
Poland Wroclaw

Slovakia Poprad

South Africa Isithebe

Sweden Norrkdping

NEW PRODUCTS INTRODUCED IN 2002

YWhirlpool — Max! Advance microwave oven, Axent microwave oven, a new line of built-in ovens, Dreamspace washing machine, Conquest side-by-side
refrigerator

YBauknecht — big washing machine, free—standing LCD washing machine, Glide telescopic, decorative hood
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YMichael A. Todman Executive Vice President and President, Whirlpool Europe

Whirlpool Europe’s operations continued to make solid improvement in challenging economic and market environments throughout the region. Revenue of
$2.2 billion was up 7 percent from 2001. Operating profit improved significantly.

The increasing consumer demand for the Whirlpool brand — the No. 1 appliance brand throughout the region — and cost savings from restructuring change
and productivity improvements contributed to the improvement. Better working capital and asset utilization by the operations led to strong, positive cash flo
for the full year.

Over the last 12 months, Whirlpool Europe has been responding to economic and market conditions within the region by reshaping both its business and
operating footprint. The effort has resulted in a more competitive operating position, additional resources for investments in innovation, and continued grow
of our leading brands and market positions.

With the 2002 acquisition of Polar S.A., Whirlpool Europe gained a strategic, low—cost manufacturing position in Poland that will serve the entire region. Th
company expects its manufacturing strategy, combined with annual savings from the restructuring initiative, to result in improved contributions and
productivity on an ongoing basis.

Also in 2002, the operation continued to advance its brand strategy. Whirlpool brand is the No. 1 brand in Europe, representing 70 percent of total revenue
Whirlpool now has the leading position in France, Ireland, Portugal, the Benelux region and Central Europe.

Among the new product innovations in 2002 were versions of the popular Whirlpool Duet washer that is sold in the United States. Launched under the
Whirlpool and Bauknecht brands as Dreamspace and big, respectively, the European versions of the Duet washer provide the same benefits and high leve
performance with designs and features that appeal to European consumers.

Another innovation is the European version of the Whirlpool Conquest side—by-side refrigerator. The Conquest refrigerator was specially designed and
manufactured to meet the needs of European consumers, including energy savings, size and design aesthetics.

Whirlpool and Bauknecht brands introduced a new range of built-in ovens, which combine elegance and advanced technology with special design feature:
that simplify their use and cleaning. Whirlpool brand also introduced the Max! Advance microwave oven, which was launched in the second half of the yeal
shortly after capturing France’s prestigious Janus award for outstanding design.

At Hometech 2002, the major international home appliance fair, Whirlpool Europe showcased new products and presented Whirlpool-sponsored research
analyzing emerging domestic trends in Europe and consumer interaction with home appliance technology.

Whirlpool Europe’s design team continued to win critical design acclaim for its futuristic appliance concept work. Coming off its earlier “Macrowave: New
Frontiers for the Modern Microwave,” the company unveiled “Project F,” visionary concepts for future fabric-care products. The company uses these and
other concept projects to gain consumer insights for ongoing innovation and product development efforts.
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Latin America Operating Review

YBrazil, Argentina, Chile, Other markets of the Southern Cone

[PHOTO APPEARS HERE]

[PHOTO APPEARS HERE]

YConsul air conditioner

Among the most economic in Latin America, Consul air conditioners also are among the quietest, with easy-to—install designs, easy—-to—change filters and
quick—cooling system that uniformly cools entire rooms.

YBrastemp Quality range

Making cleaning even easier, the new Brastemp Quality gas range offers a glassy, scratch-resistant finish that helps customers with one of their most disli
tasks — cleaning the range after meal preparation.

KEY STATISTICS

YNo. 1 market position in the industry
Y$1.27 billion in 2002 sales
Y$107 million in 2002 operating profit

YApproximately 17,000 employees

BRANDS

Whirlpool, Brastemp, Consul, Embraco, Eslab&oacute;n de Lujo

PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS

Refrigerators, Automatic Washers, Compressors, Dishwashers, Freezers, Microwave Ovens, Ranges, Room Air Conditioners, Countertop Appliances

HEADQUARTERS

S&atilde;o Paulo, Brazil; Buenos Aires, Argentina; Santiago, Chile

MANUFACTURING LOCATIONS



Brazil Manaus, Rio Claro, Joinville, S&atilde;o Paulo
International (Embraco) Riva di Chieri, Italy;

Spisska Nova Ves, Slovakia; Beijing, China

NEW PRODUCTS INTRODUCED IN 2002

YBrastemp — Advantech Wash automatic washer; Hot Water Advantech Wash automatic washer; Stain Removing Advantech Wash automatic washer; De
Grill ranges; Quality Grill and Quality Top Clean ranges; Maison Tri Chama and Maison Tri Chama Inox ranges; Bottom Freezer refrigerator

YConsul — Performer, Ideale, Pratice, and Facility ranges; 7,500 BTU Timer Classe A, Electronic, Digital and Split air conditioners; Tabletop Dishwasher;
Hooded Oven
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 Paulo F. M. Periquito Executive Vice President and President, Latin America

In Latin America, the economic crisis in Argentina and the political uncertainties in Brazil and other countries within the region led to a dramatic slowdown i
consumer spending. Given this environment, revenue of $1.3 billion declined 15 percent from 2001, or down 4 percent excluding currency translations.

Despite the decline, operating profit as a percentage of sales was only slightly lower than the previous year. During the year, Whirlpool's operations quickly
responded to the changing market dynamics by adjusting production rates and inventory levels. The action — combined with significant export growth and ¢
savings from productivity and restructuring efforts — contributed to the operating margin performance.

Whirlpool's Brazil-based compressor business, Embraco, remained a strong performer for the company. The unit, which also has manufacturing operation
Italy, Slovakia and China, continued to advance its technological and global leadership position. In 2002, exports from the regional operations —which inclu
compressors and major appliances — reached a record high, rising more than 50 percent. The company expects exports from the region will be an increasi
positive factor in the operation’s ongoing performance.

Throughout the year, Whirlpool Latin America launched a number of new and innovative products, all of which addressed consumer needs. For instance,
Brastemp brand reinforced its innovative and trend—setting image through the introduction of a bottom—freezer configuration for refrigerators, which receive
strong customer praise for its ergonomic design and other features.

Brastemp brand also launched a new line of premium cooking products, such as cook-tops and clothes washer models, which broadened the brand’s
full-range of product offerings.

Consul brand updated its entire line of products in 2002. Among the highlights were an array of innovative air conditioners, including an attractive,
space-saving split-line model; a convenient six—service dishwasher; and the brand’s first push into the frost—free refrigeration market.

Brastemp and Consul brands also partnered with leading Brazilian companies in implementing brand image-building actions through architectural, decorat
and cooking events. Such efforts help maintain the brands’ outstanding recognition among consumers, particularly Brastemp, which again placed fourth as
Brazil's most recognized brand.

Consul brand gained significant recognition for its social responsibility initiative, Woman CONSULate. The effort is targeted at improving the lives of
disadvantaged women. Since its launch in early 2002, CONSULate has recruited more than 350 volunteers and assisted over 20,000 women.

Whirlpool’s subsidiary companies in the region — Multibras and Embraco — were cited by a leading Brazilian business magazine for being among the top 1(
companies in the country and among the best to work for. Multibras and Embraco are among only seven of the top 100 named to the list for six consecutiv
years.

Retailers and customers widely commend the company for its outstanding service, especially through its innovative assistance channels, such as Retailers
Service Hotline and Urgent Customer Hotline. In addition, through an Internet contact center, customers can arrange for technical-assistance visits, registe
suggestions and clarify any concerns they may have about the company’s products.
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Asia Operating Review

eIndia, China, Asia /Pacific

[PHOTO APPEARS HERE]

[PHOTO APPEARS HERE]

*Whirlpool Jupiter washer

Among the first widely distributed clothes washers in Asia that use warm water, the Whirlpool Jupiter stain—-removal washer eliminates most stains, including
those from bicycles and cooking oil, and is gentle on woolen garments.

*Whirlpool microwave

With ease of use and consumer safety in mind, Whirlpool microwave ovens are designed for preparing traditional Indian cuisine and come with a new, unique
crisping function to evenly brown breads and other dishes.

KEY STATISTICS

sLeader among Western companies, with No. 1 market position in India
*$391 million in 2002 sales
*$14 million in 2002 operating profit

«Approximately 5,000 employees

BRANDS

Whirlpool

PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS

Washers, Refrigerators, Microwave Ovens,

Air Conditioners, Compressors

HEADQUARTERS

Hong Kong, PRC

MANUFACTURING LOCATIONS



India Faridabad, Pune, Pondicherry

China Shanghai, Shunde

NEW PRODUCTS INTRODUCED IN 2002

*Whirlpool — semi—automatic Whitemagic washer, front-load Whitemagic washer, Icemagic refrigerator with Fast Forward Ice feature, Jupiter front-load and
top-load washers, MagiCool air conditioners with Quick Cool technology
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«Garrick D'Silva Regional Vice President, Whirlpool Asia

Whirlpool Asia continued to make rapid strides in India and China, the company'’s largest markets in the region. In particular, the Whirlpool brand further
increased its market share throughout Asia and especially in India, where the brand is No. 1 in the laundry and refrigeration categories.

For the year, revenue of $391 million increased 5 percent.

Whirlpool Asia’s performance was noteworthy, given the economic uncertainties that prevailed in much of the region throughout the year in this highly
competitive marketplace. The company continues to build upon its solid operating foundation in the world’s largest and fastest growing home appliance
market.

The company’s consumer—focused strategy continued to make deeper inroads throughout the region and largely was responsible for Whirlpool Asia’s
11-percent unit growth, one of the strongest industry performances in the region.

Dozens of new products were launched during the year, 25 alone in India. Among them was a new line of Whirlpool Icemagic refrigerators, with a unique
Fast Forward Ice feature that makes ice quicker than ever before. A button on the refrigerators’ exterior control panel activates the quick—ice system.

Other Whirlpool brand introductions in 2002 included a line of MagiCool air conditioners, with their Quick Cool technology to chill rooms fast, and the
MagiCook microwave ovens. Following Quick Cool’'s successful launch, the product quickly established a solid position for the Whirlpool brand within the
air-conditioning segment of the market.

Among the significant introductions in Whirlpool China was the launch of a new Whirlpool 6th Sense clothes washer, with sensor washing technology suite
to the China market. In addition, we acquired the remaining 20 percent of the shares from our former partner in a washing machine joint venture in Shangh

The company also achieved an environmental milestone when Australia’s Sustainable Energy Development Association recognized Whirlpool as a
responsible manufacturer of energy efficient products, becoming the first appliance maker to receive the endorsement.

During the year, the company continued its steady penetration into China'’s interior provinces from the country’s coastal region, where Whirlpool enjoys an
increasingly strong market presence. The company is overcoming the country’s structural challenges to product distribution by engaging with strategic trad
partners. These trade partnerships will help Whirlpool continue to expand its distribution network and take part in the rapidly growing prosperity of China’s

domestic market.

Both China and India continued to offer excellent export opportunities for the company. Whirlpool China, for example, manufactures the bulk of the
company’s global microwave products. In 2002, Whirlpool India began to manufacture and export new KitchenAid portable appliances to the United States
and elsewhere. Early success with blade coffee grinders led to plans to expand the manufacturing line of KitchenAid portables with coffee makers and
compact ovens. Whirlpool India continued to maintain its leadership as the country’s top exporter of white goods, shipping to more than 40 countries
throughout Asia, the Pacific Rim, the Middle East, Africa, Latin America and the Caribbean.

In addition, India and China are emerging as key technology centers in Whirlpool’s global technology organization. Besides manufacturing the bulk of the
company'’s microwave products, Whirlpool China also is taking on much of the company’s microwave technology development. In India, Whirlpool's Pune
plant is focusing on refrigeration and air—conditioning technology, while the Pondicherry facility supports the development of the company’s clothes—washir
technology.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The consolidated statements of operations summarize operating results for the last three years. This section of Management's Discussion and Analysis highli

the main factors affecting changes in operating results during the three-year period.

EARNINGS

Earnings from continuing operations were $262 million in 2002 versus $34 million and $367 million in 2001 and 2000. The significant increase in 2002 relates
primarily to the $181 million in after—tax product recall charges recorded in 2001, slightly lower restructuring expenses in 2002 and improved operating

performance over 2001. The significant decrease in 2001 versus 2000 is due to the product recall and restructuring expenses recognized in 2001. Charges re
to the cumulative effect of changes in accounting principle and discontinued operations are excluded from earnings from continuing operations but included ir

net earnings (loss).

Millions of dollars, except per share data 2002 2001 2000
Earnings from continuing operations $ 262 $ 34 $367
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 3.78 0.50 5.20
Net earnings (loss) (394) 21 367
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share (5.68) 0.31 5.20
Core earnings from operations 420 371 367
Diluted core earnings per share 6.07 5.45 5.20

Whirlpool provides core earnings analysis as a view of the underlying strength of our operations. The term “core earnings” refers to net earnings excluding the
cumulative effects of the adoption of new accounting standards, discontinued operations, restructuring and related charges, write—off of asset impairments, al

product recall related charges.

Core earnings improved for 2002 due to a strong performance in our North American operations, which achieved strong growth in both sales and earnings, al
with a significant improvement in earnings in our European operations and the benefits of our restructuring and ongoing productivity efforts. These combined

offset the effects of economic and political instability in Latin American markets accompanied by severe currency fluctuations for the region.
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The table below reconciles 2002, 2001 and 2000 net earnings (loss) to core earnings from operations. The adjustments to arrive at core earnings from operat
are presented in the table on an after-tax and minority interests basis and reference the related notes to the accompanying consolidated financial statements

Millions of dollars 2002 2001 2000
Net earnings (loss) — U.S. GAAP $(3394) $21 $367
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principle (Notes 1 and 3) 613 (8) —
Discontinued operations (Note 5) 43 21 —
Earnings from continuing operations 262 34 367
Restructuring and related charges (Note 13) 121 156 —
Write—off of equity interest and advances (Note 7) 22 — —
Goodwill impairment (Note 3) 9 — —
Product recall related charges (Note 14) 6 181 —
Core earnings from operations $ 420 $371 $367

We expect that the company will continue to face challenging economic conditions worldwide during 2003. Despite this, we expect to see moderate growth
during 2003, reflecting an accelerated pace of innovation and continued strengthening of Whirlpool brands throughout the world. We will also recognize
additional benefits from the recently completed restructuring initiative and other productivity efforts. As a result, we expect to see improved earnings over 200
levels.

NET SALES

The total number of units sold in 2002 increased 7.8% over 2001. Consolidated net sales increased 6.5% over 2001, which includes a negative impact from
currency fluctuations. Excluding currency impact, net sales increased 7.3%. Excluding the acquisitions of Vitromatic (Whirlpool Mexico) and Polar, as describ
in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the total number of units and dollars sold increased 4.6% and 4.2%, respectively. Net sales in 2001 were
3% over 2000 after excluding the impact of currency. The tables below provide the breakdown of units and sales by region.

In thousands 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
Units Sold:

North America 24,324 13.6% 21,404 3.7% 20,634
Europe 11,024 2.0 10,803 (0.7) 10,876
Latin America 4,386 (7.4) 4,738 3.7) 4,918
Asia 2,279 11.2 2,050 4.7 1,958
Other/eliminations (31) — (36) — (31)
Consolidated 41,982 7.8% 38,959 1.6% 38,355
In thousands 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
Net Sales:

North America $ 7,306 11.0% $ 6,581 5.8% $ 6,223
Europe 2,199 6.9 2,058 (4.5) 2,156
Latin America 1,266 (14.9) 1,487 (12.8) 1,706
Asia 391 4.8 373 (4.4) 390
Other/eliminations (146) — (156) — (150)
Consolidated $11,016 6.5%  $10,343 0.2%  $10,325
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Significant regional trends were as follows:

«In 2002, North American unit volumes increased 13.6%. Approximately one-third of the volume increase resulted from the inclusion of Whirlpool Mexico in
the company’s consolidated results since July 2002, when the remaining 51% ownership interest was acquired. While the North American industry was up, ol
market share in the region fell slightly in 2002 from its record levels achieved during 2001. In 2002, net sales increased by slightly less than unit volumes as tl
current year's acquisition combined with competitive pricing pressures reduced average sales values.

«European unit volumes increased 2.0% versus 2001 in an industry that was down slightly. The increase is due to the inclusion of sales from Polar, which we
acquired in the second quarter of 2002 as described in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Net sales increased by a larger percentage due prin
to positive currency fluctuations. Excluding currency impact, net sales increased 1.7%. European unit volumes were down in 2001 versus 2000 and net sales
decreased by a larger percentage due to currency fluctuations and continued pricing pressures.

«Unit shipments in Latin America decreased 7.4% versus 2001 due primarily to political instability and economic volatility in the region. The region’s sales,
which were down 14.9% compared to 2001, were also heavily affected by currency fluctuations, including a currency devaluation in Brazil of approximately
35%. Excluding the impact of currency fluctuations, net sales decreased 3.9%, which was less than the decrease in units shipped due to some improvements
product mix and pricing. Net sales were also lower in 2001 versus 2000 due to an economic slowdown in the region, an energy crisis in Brazil and Argentina,
currency fluctuations.

*Asia’s unit sales increased 11.2% over 2001, while net sales increased by 4.8% as product mix and pricing pressures combined to reduce the benefit of high
volumes. Excluding currency fluctuations, net sales increased 5.2%. The region continues to experience increased shipments in both the India and China ma
During 2001, Asia also posted growth in units shipped, but net sales were hurt by currency and product mix issues.

In 2003, we believe appliance industry shipments will increase slightly in North America and Asia, remain flat in Latin America, and decrease slightly in Europ

GROSS MARGIN

*The consolidated gross margin percentage in 2002 decreased slightly versus 2001 due primarily to continued global pricing pressures offsetting productivity
improvements. The consolidated gross margin percentage declined in 2001 versus 2000 due primarily to the impact of restructuring and related charges. The
table below outlines the gross margin percentages by region, excluding the impact of the 2002 and 2001 restructuring related charges of $43 million and $53
million from the regional percentages. The 2002 and 2001 restructuring related charges are included in the consolidated percentages.

2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
Gross Margin
North America 23.6% 0.1pts 23.5% (0.8)pts  24.3%
Europe 22.2 0.9 21.3 (2.0) 23.3
Latin America 23.4 (2.6) 26.0 3.1 22.9
Asia 23.7 (2.5) 26.2 0.1 26.1
Consolidated 23.2% (0.2)pts  23.4% 0.7)pts  24.1%

Significant regional trends were as follows:

«North American gross margin increased slightly versus 2001 due to productivity improvements partially offset by lower pension credits and increased warran
costs. This increase came on sharply higher sales resulting in improved operating profit for the region. The decline in 2001 versus 2000 was due to unfavorak
product and channel mix, lower pension credits and increased warranty costs offsetting productivity improvements.
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*The European gross margin increased versus 2001 due to productivity improvements and savings from the ongoing restructuring efforts in Europe. In 2001,
gross margin decreased from 2000 levels due to higher material costs, an inventory write—down and continued pricing pressures.

eLatin American gross margin declined versus 2001 due to lower sales levels and higher material prices. The 2001 gross margin improved over 2000 as impr
product mix, lower pension costs, productivity gains and restructuring benefits offset material price increases and pricing pressures.

*The Asian gross margin declined versus 2001 due to unfavorable product mix and pricing pressures. Asian gross margin increased slightly in 2001 versus 2(
as productivity improvements and product mix offset pricing pressures due to weakening economies included in this region.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of net sales remained unchanged versus 2001. While selling, general and administraf
expenses for the North American region increased over 2001 levels, the region’s increase in expense as a percentage of sales relates to the acquisition of the
remaining 51% of Whirlpool Mexico and lower pension credits. Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of net sales for 2001
decreased versus 2000 as cost controls implemented in North America and global restructuring benefits more than offset increased bad debt expense, increa
stock compensation costs, new product introduction costs, restructuring related charges and lower pension credits. The table below outlines the selling, gene
and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales by region, excluding the impact of the 2002 and 2001 restructuring related charges of $17 million and 4
million from the regional amounts. The 2002 and 2001 restructuring related charges are included in the “Corporate/Other” line.

As a% As a % As a %
Millions of dollars 2002 of Sales 2001 of Sales 2000 of Sales
Selling, general & administrative expenses
North America $ 894 122% $ 788 12.0% $ 825 13.3%
Europe 407 18.5 386 18.8 386 17.9
Latin America 189 15.0 250 16.8 263 154
Asia 70 17.8 74 19.9 76 19.4
Corporate/Other 176 — 141 — 101 —
Consolidated $1,736 15.8%  $1,639 15.8%  $1,651 16.0%

PRODUCT RECALLS

During 2001, we recognized a total of $295 million of pre-tax charges ($181 million after—tax) related to two separate product recalls. These charges were
recorded as a separate component of operating profit. During 2002, we recognized additional recall related pre—tax charges of approximately $9 million for or
of these recalls. See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed description of these charges.

RESTRUCTURING AND RELATED CHARGES

During the fourth quarter of 2002, we recognized the remaining charges for the global restructuring plan that was originally announced in December of 2000.
The plan, which had a total restructuring and related pre—tax cost of $373 million, is expected to result in more than $200 million in annualized savings once
fully implemented. At December 31, 2002, a liability of $122 million remains for actions yet to be implemented under the plan. Actions under the plan include
the elimination of over 7,000 positions worldwide, of which approximately 5,000 had been eliminated as of December 31, 2002.
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Our various restructuring initiatives resulted in pre—tax restructuring charges of $101 million and $150 million in 2002 and 2001. These amounts have beer
identified as a separate component of operating profit. As a result of our restructuring activity, we also recognized $60 million and $62 million in pre—tax
restructuring related charges during 2002 and 2001, which were recorded primarily within cost of products sold. See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a more detailed description of these charges and the company’s restructuring program.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income and sundry expense, which includes foreign currency gains and losses, financial service fees in Latin America and miscellaneous asset
dispositions, increased slightly in expense as compared to 2001, due primarily to lower interest income, and was essentially flat in 2001 versus 2000 levels

Interest expense decreased $19 million versus 2001, which was $18 million lower than 2000. Both decreases were due to the declining interest rate
environment, and the 2002 decrease was further driven by lower average debt levels.

INCOME TAXES

The effective income tax rate from continuing operations was 35% in 2002 (excluding the impact of the restructuring and related charges, the write—off of
equity interest and advances, the goodwill impairment and the product recall related charges), 35% in 2001 (excluding the impact of the product recall and
restructuring and related charges) and 35% in 2000. Including the impact of the 2002 and 2001 charges mentioned above, the effective tax rate was 39% :
46%, respectively. See the income tax rate reconciliation included in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the significant
items impacting our consolidated effective income tax rate. We expect the 2003 effective tax rate from continuing operations to be approximately 36%.

EQUITY IN EARNINGS (LOSS) OF AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The 2002 results were reduced by a $22 million after—tax impairment charge related to the company’s minority investments in and advances to a Europear
business. The company acquired its initial investment in this entity with its purchase of the appliance operations of Philips Electronics N.V. in 1989.
Continued deterioration in the German marketplace led to overcapacity in the wood cabinet industry, which resulted in the business revising its estimated
future cash flows. These circumstances prompted the company to conduct an impairment review, resulting in the above charge, which is reflected in equity
earnings (loss) in the consolidated statement of operations.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As a result of the United Airlines (“UAL") bankruptcy filing in December 2002, we wrote off our related investment in leveraged aircraft leases during the
fourth quarter of 2002. The write—off resulted in a non—cash charge to discontinued operations of approximately $68 million, or $43 million after tax. Also, a
a result of the UAL bankruptcy filing, we reclassified the related $49 million deferred tax liability on the leveraged leases to current taxes payable as of
December 31, 2002. These leveraged lease assets were part of our previously discontinued finance company, Whirlpool Financial Corporation.

During the second quarter of 2001, we wrote off an investment in a securitized aircraft portfolio that was also owned by Whirlpool Financial Corporation. Tt
write—off, due primarily to the softening aircraft leasing industry, resulted in a loss from discontinued operations of $35 million, or $21 million after—tax.

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

The company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002. As a
result of this adoption, the company recorded a non—-cash, after-tax charge of $613 million.
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The company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended on January 1, 2001. The adoption of
Statement No. 133 resulted in $8 million of income, net of tax, in the company’s statement of operations and a $11 million decrease, net of tax, in
stockholders’ equity.

See Notes 1 and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed description of these changes in accounting principles.

CASH FLOWS

The statements of cash flows reflect the changes in cash and equivalents for the last three years by classifying transactions into three major categories:
operating, investing and financing activities.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Our main source of cash flow is from operating activities consisting of net earnings adjusted for changes in operating assets and liabilities, such as receiva
inventories and payables, and for non—-cash operating items, such as depreciation.

Cash provided by operating activities totaled $812 million in 2002, $1,024 million in 2001 and $445 million in 2000. The decrease in 2002 relates primarily
the $239 million in product recall payments made during the year and to changes in deferred and current taxes. The increase in 2001 versus 2000 includes
$527 million improvement in working capital cash flows versus 2000, of which $464 million was in accounts receivable.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The principal recurring investing activities are capital expenditures, which were $430 million, $378 million and $375 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

On November 18, 2002, we acquired the remaining 20% interest in Whirlpool Narcissus Shanghai Company Limited (“Narcissus”) for $9 million. In
accordance with the purchase agreement, 40% of the purchase price was paid during 2002, with the remaining 60% to be paid during 2003.

On July 3, 2002, we acquired the remaining 51% ownership in Vitromatic S.A. de C.V. (Whirlpool Mexico), an appliance manufacturer and distributor in
Mexico. The aggregate purchase price was $151 million in cash plus assumption of outstanding debt at the time of acquisition, which totaled $143 million.

On June 5, 2002, we acquired 95% of the shares of Polar S.A. (Polar), a leading major home appliance manufacturer in Poland. The aggregate purchase |
was $27 million in cash plus outstanding debt at the time of acquisition, which totaled $19 million.

On October 5, 2001, we closed our position in a portfolio of cross currency interest rate swaps resulting in the receipt of $209 million.

On January 7, 2000, we completed our tender offer for the outstanding publicly traded shares in Brazil of our subsidiaries Brasmotor and Multibras S.A.
Eletrodomesticos (Multibras). In completing the offer, we purchased additional shares of Brasmotor and Multibras for $283 million, bringing our equity
interest in these companies to approximately 94%. With this additional investment, our combined equity interest in all Brazilian subsidiaries increased from
approximately 55% to approximately 87%.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Total borrowings (repayments) of short-term and long—term debt were $(152) million, $(569) million and $546 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively
excluding the effect of currency fluctuations and acquired debt.



On July 3, 2001, we issued 300 million euro denominated 5.875% Notes, due 2006. The notes are general obligations of the company, and the proceeds v
used for general corporate purposes.
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Dividends paid to stockholders totaled $91 million, $113 million and $70 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The large payment in 2001 was
affected by the timing of funding for the fourth quarter 2000 payment, which was paid on January 2, 2001.

Under our stock repurchase program, we purchased 0.7 million shares ($46 million) in 2002, 0.7 million shares ($43 million) in 2001 and 8.7 million shares
($427 million) in 2000. See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional detail on the company’s stock repurchase program.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

Our financial position remains strong. At December 31, 2002, our total assets were $6.6 billion versus $7.0 billion at the end of 2001. Stockholders’ equity
declined from $1.5 billion at the end of 2001 to $0.7 billion at the end of 2002. The decreases were primarily the result of a $613 million charge relating to t
adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” a $151 million charge to equity to recognize a minimum liability on defined benefit
pension plans and $148 million in foreign currency translation adjustments.

During 2002, long-term debt of $162 million was assumed through our acquisitions of Whirlpool Mexico and Polar. Excluding this assumed debt, total debt
for the company decreased by $100 million, as strong cash flows funded the acquisition costs and were used to reduce indebtedness.

In May 2002, we renewed our existing $400 million committed 364-day credit facility for another 364 days. We also have a $800 million committed credit
facility that was entered into on June 1, 2001, and matures in 2006. These committed facilities support our commercial paper programs and other operatin
needs. There were no borrowings under these facilities during 2002 or 2001. We were in full compliance with our bank covenants throughout both 2002 an
2001. None of our material debt agreements requires accelerated repayment in the event of a decrease in credit ratings. Our debt continues to be rated
investment grade by Moody's (Baal), Standard & Poor's (BBB+) and Fitch (A-).

We guarantee the indebtedness of a European affiliate and certain customers of a Brazilian subsidiary as discussed in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financie
Statements. We do not expect these guarantees to have a material effect on our financial condition or liquidity.

We believe that our capital resources and liquidity position at December 31, 2002, are adequate to meet anticipated business needs and to fund future gro
opportunities. Currently, we have access to capital markets in the U.S. and internationally. See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additio
details on our committed credit facilities and debt obligations.

OTHER MATTERS

In December 1996, Multibras and Empresa Brasileira de Compressores S.A. (Embraco), Brazilian subsidiaries, were granted additional export incentives it
connection with the Brazilian government’s export incentive program (Befiex). These incentives allowed the use of credits as an offset against current
Brazilian federal excise tax on domestic sales. We recognized credits of $42 million, $53 million and $52 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, as a
reduction of current excise taxes payable and, therefore, an increase in net sales. The company’s remaining credits are approximately $207 million at
December 31, 2002. However, we do not expect to recognize additional Befiex credits beyond the first quarter of 2003 until the calculation of the credit,
which is currently under review, is confirmed by the Brazilian courts.

At December 31, 2002, our defined benefit pension plans were underfunded on a combined basis. Poor equity market performance reduced the value of
pension assets, while extremely low interest rates reduced the discount rate, which increased the present value of liabilities. As a result, we recorded a $1°
million, after—tax, non—cash charge to equity during the fourth quarter of 2002 to recognize a minimum liability as required under SFAS No. 87, “Employers
Accounting for Pensions.” We recognized consolidated pre-tax pension credits of $24 million, $70 million and $98 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000. The
assumptions used in determining our obligation under our U.S. pension plans at
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the end of 2002 included an expected return on assets of 8.75% versus 10.00% at the end of 2001, and a discount rate of 6.75% versus 7.50% at the end
2001. Our expected return on assets of 8.75% is based on historical market returns between 1926 and 2002 applied to our allocation of plan assets. We
currently expect that U.S. pension expense for 2003 will be approximately $63 million, based on the lower asset return rate and discount rate assumptions
Consolidated expense is anticipated to be approximately $76 million.

Although most of its assets have been divested, Whirlpool Financial Corporation remains a legal entity with assets consisting primarily of a leveraged lease
portfolio. The portfolio includes investments in aircraft leveraged leases and is affected by the economic conditions of the aviation industry. See Note 5 to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The company continues to monitor its arrangements with the lessees and the value of the underlying assets.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management has evaluated the accounting policies used in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements and related notes, and believes thos
policies to be reasonable and appropriate. Our accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Certain of these
accounting policies require the application of significant judgment by management in selecting the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial estimat
By their nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Our critical accounting policies include the following:

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Accounting for pensions and other postretirement benefits involves estimating the costs of future benefits and attributing the cost over the employee’s
expected period of employment with the company. The determination of our obligation and expense for these costs requires the use of certain assumption:
Those assumptions are included in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and include, among others, the discount rate, expected long-term ra
return on plan assets, and rates of increase in compensation and healthcare costs. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, actual res
that differ from our assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and, therefore, generally affect our recognized expense and recorded
obligation in such future periods. While we believe that our assumptions are appropriate given current economic conditions and our actual experience,
significant differences in our actual experience or significant changes in our assumptions may materially affect our pension and other postretirement
obligations and related future expense.

Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we estimate our income taxes in each of the taxing jurisdictions in which we ope
This process involves estimating our actual current tax expense together with assessing any temporary differences resulting from the different treatment of
certain items, such as the timing for recognizing expenses, for tax and accounting purposes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standar
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” These differences may result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in our consolidated balance
sheets. We are required to assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets, which include net operating loss carryforwards and temporary differences the
expected to be deductible in future years, will be recoverable. If recovery is not likely, we provide a valuation allowance based on our estimates of future
taxable income in the various taxing jurisdictions, and the amount of deferred taxes that are ultimately realizable. If future taxable income was lower than
expected or if tax planning strategies were not available as anticipated, we may record additional valuation allowances through income tax expense in the
period such determination is made. Likewise, if we determine that we would be able to realize our deferred tax assets in the future in excess of their net
recorded amounts, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase income in the period such determination is made. As of December 31, 2002, we
total deferred tax assets of $698 million, net of valuation allowances of $65 million (see Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
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In addition, we operate within multiple taxing jurisdictions and are subject to audit in these jurisdictions. These audits can involve complex issues, which m:
require an extended period of time to resolve. In our opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for all years.

Befiex Credits

As discussed above, our Brazilian subsidiaries have been recognizing benefits under the Brazilian government’s export incentive program (Befiex) as an
offset against current Brazilian federal excise tax on domestic sales. Since the initial granting of these credits in 1996, it has been our policy to recognize tt
credits as they have been monetized. There have been, however, ongoing legal proceedings relating to this program, and it is presently under review withi
Brazilian court system. We have chosen not to recognize any of our remaining credits of $207 million under the program beyond the first quarter of 2003 ul
the Brazilian courts have confirmed the method used to calculate those remaining credits.

Product Recall

The establishment of a liability for product recall expenses is occasionally required and is impacted by several factors, such as customer response rate,
consumer options, field repair costs, inventory repair costs, extended warranty costs, communication structure, and other miscellaneous costs, such as leg
logistics and consulting. The customer response rate, which represents an estimate of the total number of units to be serviced as a percentage of the total
number of units impacted by the recall, is the most significant factor in estimating the total cost of each recall. These rates are impacted by several factors,
including the type of product, the year manufactured, age of the product sold, and current and past experience factors. Significant differences between our
assumptions and our actual experience or significant changes in our assumptions could have a material impact on our product recall reserves, if any.

MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, domestic and foreign interest rates, and commodity prices, which can aff
our operating results and overall financial condition. We manage our exposure to these market risks through our operating and financing activities, and, wh
deemed appropriate, through the use of derivative financial instruments. Derivative financial instruments are viewed as risk management tools and are not
used for speculation or for trading purposes. Derivative financial instruments are entered into with a diversified group of investment grade counterparties to
reduce our exposure to nonperformance on such instruments. Our sensitivity analysis reflects the effects of changes in market risk but does not factor in
potential business risks of the counterparties or appropriate use of instruments.

We use foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the price risk associated with firmly committed and forecasted cross—border payments and receipts re
to our ongoing business and operational financing activities. Foreign currency contracts are sensitive to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. At
December 31, 2002, a 10% unfavorable exchange rate movement in our portfolio of foreign currency forward contracts would have resulted in an incremer
unrealized loss of $65 million, while a 10% favorable shift would have resulted in an incremental unrealized gain of $72 million. Consistent with the use of
these contracts to neutralize the effect of exchange rate fluctuations, such unrealized losses or gains would be offset by corresponding gains or losses,
respectively, in the remeasurement of the underlying exposures.

We use commodity swap contracts to hedge the price risk associated with firmly committed and forecasted commodities purchases that are not fixed direc
through supply contracts. As of December 31, 2002, a 10% unfavorable shift in commaodity prices would have resulted in an incremental loss of $3 million,
while a 10% favorable shift would have resulted in an incremental gain of $3 million.

We utilize interest rate swaps to hedge our interest rate risk. As of December 31, 2002, a 10% shift in interest rates would have resulted in an incremental
million gain or loss related to these contracts.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward—looking statements made by or on behalf of the company.
Management's Discussion and Analysis and other sections of this report may contain forward—looking statements that reflect our current views with respec
future events and financial performance.

Certain statements contained in this annual report and other written and oral statements made from time to time by the company do not relate strictly to
historical or current facts. As such, they are considered “forward—looking statements” which provide current expectations or forecasts of future events. Suc
statements can be identified by the use of terminology such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “could,” “possible,” “plan,”
“project,” “will,” “forecast,” and similar words or expressions. Our forward-looking statements generally relate to our growth strategies, financial results,
product development and sales efforts. These forward-looking statements should be considered with the understanding that such statements involve a val
of risks and uncertainties, known and unknown, and may be affected by inaccurate assumptions. Consequently, no forward-looking statement can be
guaranteed, and actual results may vary materially.

Many factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the company’s forward—looking statements. Among these factors are: (1) competitive
pressure to reduce prices; (2) the ability to gain or maintain market share in intensely competitive global markets; (3) the success of our global strategy to
develop brand differentiation and brand loyalty; (4) our ability to control operating and selling costs, and to maintain profit margins during industry
downturns; (5) the success of our Latin American businesses operating in

challenging and volatile environments; (6) continuation of our strong relationship with Sears, Roebuck and Co. in North America, which accounted for
approximately 21% of our consolidated net sales of $11 billion in 2002; (7) currency exchange rate fluctuations; (8) social, economic and political volatility i
developing markets; (9) continuing uncertainty in the North American, Latin American, Asian and European economies; (10) changes in North America’s
consumer preferences regarding how appliances are purchased; (11) the effectiveness of the series of restructuring actions the company has announced ¢
completed through 2002; and (12) the threat of terrorist activities or the possibility of war.

We undertake no obligation to update every forward-looking statement, and investors are advised to review disclosures in our filings with the Securities an
Exchange Commission. It is not possible to foresee or identify all factors that could cause actual results to differ from expected or historic results. Therefore
investors should not consider the foregoing factors to be an exhaustive statement of all risks, uncertainties, or factors that could potentially cause actual re:
to differ.
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Year Ended December 31 — Millions of dollars except per share data

Net sales

Expenses

Cost of products sold

Selling, general and administrative
Intangible amortization

Product recall costs

Restructuring costs

Operating Profit

Other income (expense)
Interest income and sundry
Interest expense

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and other items

Income taxes

Earnings from continuing operations

before equity earnings and minority interests
Equity in earnings (loss) of affiliated companies
Minority interests

Earnings from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of tax
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax

Net earnings (loss)

Per share of common stock

Basic earnings from continuing operations

Discontinued operations, net of tax

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax

Basic net earnings (loss)

Diluted earnings from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of tax
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax

Diluted net earnings (loss)

Dividends

Weighted—average shares outstanding: (millions)
Basic

Diluted

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Statements of Operations

2002 2001 2000

$11,016 $10,343 $10,325

8,464 7,925 7,838
1,736 1,639 1,651
14 28 29
9 295 —
101 150 —
692 306 807
(54) (51) (50)
(143) (162) (180)
495 93 577
193 43 200
302 50 377
@7) () 3
(13) (12) (13)
262 34 367
(43) (21) —
(613) 8 —

$ (394 $ 21 $ 367

$ 38 $ 051 $ 524
(0.62) (0.32) —
(9.03) 0.12 —

$ (79 $ 031 $ 524

$ 378 $ 050 $ 520
(0.62) (0.31) —
(8.84) 0.12 —

$ (5.68) $ 0.31 $ 5.20

$ 136 $ 1.36 $ 136

67.9 66.7 70.2
69.3 68.0 70.6
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 — Millions of dollars

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and equivalents

Trade receivables, less allowances (2002: $94; 2001: $93)

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Other assets

Investment in affiliated companies
Goodwill, net

Other intangibles, net

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid pension costs

Other assets

Property, plant and equipment
Land

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

42 Consolidated Balance Sheets

2002

$ 192
1,781
1,089

83
118

3,327

7
161
182
437

43
136

966

87
954
4,793

(3,496)

2,338

$6,631

2001

$ 316
1,515
1,110

176
135

3,311

117
685

23
354
208
217

1,604

56

886

4,372
(3,262)

2,052

$ 6,967



December 31 —Millions of dollars 2002

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current liabilities

Notes payable $ 221
Accounts payable 1,631
Employee compensation 273
Deferred income taxes 100
Accrued expenses 664
Restructuring costs 122
Accrued product recalls —
Other current liabilities 283
Current maturities of long—term debt 211
Total Current Liabilities 3,505
Other liabilities
Deferred income taxes 117
Pension benefits 358
Postemployment benefits 487
Product warranty 57
Other liabilities 198
Long-term debt 1,092
2,309
Minority interests 78

Stockholders’ equity

Common stock, $1 par value: 87
Authorized — 250 million shares

Issued — 87 million shares (2002); 85 million shares (2001)

Outstanding — 68 million shares (2002); 67 million shares (2001)

Paid-in capital 582
Retained earnings 1,985
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (999)
Treasury stock — 19 million shares (2002); 18 million shares (2001) (916)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 739
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $6,631

See notes to consolidated financial statements

2001

177
143
480

160
1,295

2,300

127

86

480
2,470
(697)
(881)

1,458

$6,967
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31 — Millions of dollars

Operating activities
Net earnings (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle

Equity in earnings (losses) of affiliated companies, less dividends received

Loss on disposition of assets
Loss on discontinued operations
Depreciation and amortization

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of business acquisitions:

Trade receivables

Inventories

Accounts payable

Product recalls

Restructuring charges, net of cash paid

Taxes deferred and payable, net

Tax paid on cross currency interest rate swap gain
Other — net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Investing activities

Capital expenditures

Acquisitions of businesses, less cash acquired
Proceeds of cross—currency interest rate swaps

Cash Used for Investing Activities

Financing activities

Net proceeds (repayments) of short-term borrowings
Proceeds of long—term debt

Repayments of long-term debt

Dividends paid

Purchase of treasury stock

Other — net

Cash Provided by (used for) Financing Activities
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Equivalents

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2002 2001 2000
$(394) $ 21  $367
613 ®) —

27 4 ©)
32 33 15
43 21 -
405 396 400
(67) 116 (348)
101 (26) (80)
63 230 221
(239) 239 —
33 74 (43)
157 (129) 11
(86) — —
124 53 (95)
$812  $1,024  $445
$(430) $(378)  $(375)
(179) — (283)
— 209 —
$(609) $(169)  $(658)
$(165)  $(790) $628
6 301 326
(30) (80)  (408)
(91) (113) (70)
(46) 43)  (427)
3 72 27
$(323) $(653) $ 76
$ 4 $— $ (10)
$(124) $ 202 $(147)
316 114 261
$192 $ 316 $114




Millions of dollars

Balances, January 1, 2000

Comprehensive income

Net earnings

Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of tax of $4
Foreign currency items, net of tax of $15

Comprehensive income

Common stock repurchased
Common stock issued
Dividends declared on common stock

Balances, December 31, 2000

Comprehensive loss
Net earnings

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax of $7
Unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments, net of tax of $2

Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of tax of $4
Foreign currency items, net of tax of $3

Comprehensive loss

Common stock repurchased
Common stock issued
Dividends declared on common stock

Balances, December 31, 2001

Comprehensive loss
Net loss
Unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments

Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of tax of $100

Foreign currency items
Comprehensive loss

Common stock repurchased, net of reissuances
Common stock issued
Dividends declared on common stock

Balances, December 31, 2002

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Treasury
Stock/ Accumulated
Other
Paid-in Retained
Common Comprehensive
Stock Capital Income Earnings Total
$ 8 $ (42 $ (443) $2,268  $1,867
367 367
() (5)
(47) 47)
315
(427) (427)
25 25
(96) (96)
$ 84 & (444) $ (495) $ 2,539 $1,684
21 21
11) (11)
(6 (6
(7) (7)
(178) (178)
(181)
(43) (43)
2 86 88
(90) (90)
$ 8 $ (401) $ (697) $2470  $1,458
(394) (394)
(3) 3
(151) (151)
(148) (148)
(696)
(35) (35)
1 102 103
(91) (91)
$ 87 $ (33 $ (999) $1,985 $ 739

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

* 01 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Whirlpool Corporation is the world’s leading manufacturer and marketer of major home appliances. The company manufactures in nine countries under nin
major brand names and markets products to distributors and retailers in more than 170 countries.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include all majority—owned subsidiaries. Investments in affiliated companies, consisting principally of direct voting
interests of 40% and 49% in two other international companies principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of major home appliances or related
component parts, are accounted for by the equity method. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Use of Estimates

Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recorded when title passes to the customer. The point at which title passes is determined by the shipping terms, which generally designate a trar
of title to the customer as soon as the product is shipped. Allowances for estimated returns are made on sales of certain products based on historical retur
rates for the products involved.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The company carries its accounts receivable at their face amounts less an allowance for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the company evaluates its
accounts receivable and establishes the allowance for doubtful accounts based on a combination of specific customer circumstances and credit conditions
based on a history of write—offs and collections. The company’s policy is to generally not charge interest on trade receivables after the invoice becomes pa
due. A receivable is considered past due if payments have not been received within agreed upon invoice terms.

Freight and Warehousing Costs

Freight—-out and warehousing costs included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the statements of operations were $520 million, $497 millior
and $470 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Cash and Equivalents

All highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Inventories



Inventories are stated at first—in, first—out (FIFO) cost, except U.S. production inventories, which are stated at last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost, and Brazilian
inventories, which are stated at average cost. Costs do not exceed realizable values.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Useful lives for buildings range from 25 to 40 years, and machinery and equipment range from three to 10 years. Assets recordel
under capital leases are included in property, plant and equipment.
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Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred. Such costs were $282 million, $231 million and $254 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. Such costs were $176 million, $177 million and $191 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for the company’s international subsidiaries and affiliates is typically the local currency. Certain international subsidiaries utilize the
U.S. dollar as the functional currency.

Derivative Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2001, the company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgir
Activities,” as amended. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 resulted in a cumulative effect of an accounting change of $8 million of income, net of tax, in the
company’s statement of operations and a $11 million decrease, net of tax, in stockholders’ equity. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 133, the company
recognizes all of its derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value (i.e., gai
or losses) of a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and, further, on the type of he
relationship. For those derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, the company must designate the hedging instrument, b
upon the exposure being hedged, as a cash flow hedge, fair value hedge, or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.

Cash flow hedges are hedges that use derivatives to offset the variability of expected future cash flows. The effective portion of the unrealized gain or loss on
derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge is reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income and reclassified into earning
the same line item associated with the hedged transaction in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The ineffective
portion of the unrealized gain or loss on the derivative instrument, if any, is recognized in other income (expense) in current earnings during the period of chal

Fair value hedges are hedges that eliminate the risk of changes in the fair values of assets, liabilities and certain types of firm commitments. The gain or loss
derivative instrument designated as a fair value hedge and the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item are recognized in the same line item associated witt
hedged item in current earnings during the period of the change in fair values.

Net investment hedge designation refers to the use of derivative contracts or cash instruments to hedge the foreign currency exposure of a net investment in
foreign operation. For those derivatives that qualify as net investment hedges, the effective portion of any unrealized gain or loss is reported in accumulated c
comprehensive income as part of the cumulative translation adjustment. Any ineffective portion of net investment hedges is recognized in other income
(expense) in current earnings during the period of change.

For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments, the unrealized gain or loss is recognized in other income (expense) in current earnings dut
the period of change.
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Stock-Based Employee Compensation

Stock option and incentive plans are accounted for under the intrinsic value method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretations. The company has adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting f
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” but has not adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended. Had the company elected to adopt the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, pro forma net earnings (loss) anc
diluted net earnings (loss) per share would be as follows:

Year ended December 31 — Millions of dollars, except per share data 2002 2001 2000
Compensation cost included in earnings as reported (net of tax benefits) $ 12 $16 $ 1
Pro forma total fair value compensation cost (net of tax benefits) $ 25 $29 ¢ 13
Net earnings (loss)

As reported $(394) $ 21 $367
Pro forma (407) 8 355
Basic net earnings (loss) per share

As reported $(5.79) $0.31 $5.24
Pro forma (5.99) 0.12 5.06
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share

As reported $(5.68) $0.31 $5.20
Pro forma (5.87) 0.12 5.03

Net Earnings Per Common Share (in thousands)

Diluted net earnings per share of common stock includes the dilutive effect of stock options and stock based compensation plans. For the year ended Decem
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, a total of 1,885 options, 619 options, and 4,820 options, respectively, were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per sh
because their exercise prices would render them anti—dilutive.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year data to conform to the current year presentation which had no effect on net income reported for any pe

* 02 NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” The Interpretation includes additional disclosure provisions as well as recognition and
measurement provisions which require a liability to be recorded for certain guarantees at fair value. The disclosure requirements of this interpretation have be
adopted by the company at December 31, 2002. The recognition and measurement provisions became effective for the company on January 1, 2003, and art
expected to have a material effect on the company.

* 03 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Goodwill

The company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002.
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The following table provides comparative net earnings (loss) and net earnings (loss) per share had the non—amortization provisions of SFAS No. 142 been
adopted for all periods presented:

Millions of dollars, except per share data 2002 2001 2000
Reported net earnings (loss) $(394) $21 $367
Goodwill amortization — 27 27
Adjusted net earnings (loss) $(394) $48 $394
Basic earnings per share

Reported net earnings (loss) $(5.79) $31 $5.24
Goodwill amortization — .40 .38
Adjusted net earnings (loss) $(5.79) $.71 $5.62

Diluted earnings per share

Reported net earnings (loss) $(5.68) $.31  $5.20
Goodwill amortization — .40 .38
Adjusted net earnings (loss) $(5.68) $.71  $5.58

The company completed the transitional goodwill impairment review of its reporting units and recorded a non-cash after—tax charge of $613 million, or $8.84
per diluted share, as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in 2002. An additional impairment of $9 million, after tax, was recognized as a
charge to operations during the fourth quarter of 2002 relating to goodwill acquired in Asia (see Note 4).

The following table summarizes the impairment charges by reporting unit as well as the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended Decernr
31, 2002:

Impairment End
Beginning

Reporting Unit — Millions of dollars of Year Charges Acquisitions of Year
North America $ 68 $ = $ 89 $ 157
Europe 367 (367) — —
Latin America 64 (60) — 4
Asia 186 (195) 9 —_
Total $ 685 $ (622) $ 98 $ 161

The goodwill in Europe was related primarily to the company’s acquisition in 1989 (53%) and 1991 (47%) of the major appliance business of Philips Electroni
N.V. The Latin American goodwill was mainly generated by the company’s majority ownership expansion in 1997 of its Brazilian affiliates. Within the Asian
business segment, the majority of goodwill arose in 1995 due to the acquisition of a majority interest in Kelvinator of India, Ltd., and expansion into China.

The company determined the fair value of each reporting unit using a discounted cash flow approach taking into consideration projections based on the indivi
characteristics of the reporting units, historical trends and market multiples for comparable businesses. The resulting impairment was primarily attributable to
change in the evaluation criteria for goodwill utilized under previous accounting guidance to the fair value approach stipulated in SFAS No. 142. External fact
such as increased regional competition and global economic conditions also negatively impacted the value of these acquisitions.
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Other Intangible Assets

Other intangibles are comprised of the following:

December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001
Trademarks (indefinite-lived) $49 $ 13
Patents and non—compete agreements 5 10
Pension related 128 —
Total other intangible assets, net $182 $ 23

The balance at December 31, 2002, includes trademarks acquired as part of the Whirlpool Mexico and Polar acquisitions (see Note 4), and intangible assets
related to minimum pension liabilities (see Note 16). Accumulated amortization totaled $21 million and $16 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

* 04 BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

Whirlpool Mexico

On July 3, 2002, the company acquired the remaining 51% ownership in Vitromatic S.A. de C.V. (now called Whirlpool Mexico), an appliance manufacturer ai
distributor in Mexico. Prior to that date, the company’s 49% ownership in Whirlpool Mexico was accounted for as an equity investment. Whirlpool Mexico has
been included in the consolidated financial statements within the North American operating segment since the acquisition date. The aggregate purchase price
$151 million in cash plus outstanding debt at the time of acquisition, which totaled $143 million. The transaction resulted in goodwill of $89 million, and is
expected to result in additional synergies and operational benefits. The transaction also generated approximately $15 million in indefinite-lived intangible ass
related to trademarks owned by Whirlpool Mexico.

The Whirlpool Mexico opening balance sheet is summarized (in millions of dollars) as follows:

ASSETS

Current assets

Trade receivables, net $130
Inventories 60
Other current assets 15
Total Current Assets 205
Other assets

Property, plant and equipment 245
Goodwill 89
Other intangibles 15
Total Assets $554
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’ S EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $112
Notes payable 132
Total Current Liabilities 244

Other liabilities

Other liabilities 80
Total Other Liabilities 80
Total Stockholder’'s Equity 230
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity $554
Polar

On June 5, 2002, the company acquired 95% of the shares of Polar S.A. (Polar), a leading major home appliance manufacturer in Poland. The results of Polz
operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements since that date. The aggregate purchase price was $27 million in cash plus outstandir
debt at the time of acquisition, which totaled $19 million. The transaction also generated $17 million in indefinite—lived intangible assets related to trademarks
owned by Polar. The operations of Polar have been included in the company’s European operating segment.

Other

On November 18, 2002, the company acquired the remaining 20% interest in Whirlpool Narcissus Shanghai Company Limited (“Narcissus”) for $9 million.
Narcissus is a home appliance manufacturing company located in Shanghai, China. The transaction was largely necessitated by the exercise of a put option |
minority partner arising out of an amendment to the joint venture contract agreed to in February 1998. The purchase resulted in $9 million of goodwill, which
was subsequently written off as impaired goodwill under the requirements of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The entity is now a wholl
owned subsidiary of the company.

On January 7, 2000, the company completed its tender offer for the outstanding publicly traded shares in Brazil of its subsidiaries Brasmotor S.A. (Brasmotor
and Multibras S.A. Eletrodomesticos (Multibras). In completing the offer, the company purchased additional shares of Brasmotor and Multibras for $283 millio
bringing its equity interest in these companies to approximately 94%. Including Embraco, the company’s equity interest in its Brazilian subsidiaries increased
from approximately 55% to approximately 87%.

* 05 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In 1997, the company discontinued its financing operations, Whirlpool Financial Corporation (WFC), and sold the majority of its assets. The remaining assets
consist primarily of an investment in a portfolio of leveraged leases, which are recorded in other non—current assets in the balance sheets and totaled $44 mil
and $123 million, net of related reserves, at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the company wrote off WFC'’s investment in leveraged aircraft leases relating to United Airlines (UAL) as a result of UAL’s
filing for bankruptcy protection. The write—off resulted in a non—cash charge of $68 million, or $43 million after tax. The company also reclassified $49 million
in related long—-term deferred tax liabilities to current taxes payable, which is included in other current liabilities on the company’s Consolidated Balance Shee

2002 Annual Report 51



During the second quarter of 2001, the company wrote off a portion of WFC'’s investment in securitized aircraft leases. The write—off, due primarily to the
softening aircraft leasing industry, resulted in a loss from discontinued operations of $35 million, or $21 million after—tax.

* 06 INVENTORIES

December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001

Finished products $ 928 $ 949
Work in process 71 58
Raw materials 226 239

1,225 1,246

Less excess of FIFO cost over LIFO cost (136) (136)
Total inventories $1,089 $1,110

LIFO inventories represent approximately 33% and 39% of total inventories at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

* 07 ASSET IMPAIRMENT

The company recorded a $22 million after—tax impairment charge in the second quarter of 2002 related to its minority investments in and advances to a Euro
business. The company acquired its initial investment in this entity with its purchase of the appliance operations of Philips Electronics N.V. in 1989. Continuec
deterioration in the marketplace led to overcapacity in the wood cabinet industry, which resulted in the business revising its estimated future cash flows. Thes
circumstances prompted the company to conduct an impairment review, resulting in the above charge, which is reflected in equity earnings (loss) in the
consolidated statement of operations.

* 08 FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Notes Payable and Debt

At December 31, 2002, the company had committed unsecured revolving lines of credit available from banks totaling $1.2 billion. The lines of credit are
comprised of a committed $800 million credit agreement, which expires in June 2006, and a committed $400 million 364—-day credit agreement maturing in M
2003. These committed lines support the company’s commercial paper programs and other liquidity needs. The interest rate for borrowing under the credit
agreements is generally based on the London Interbank Offered Rate plus a spread that reflects the company’s debt rating. The credit agreements require th
company maintain a maximum debt to EBITDA ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio. At December 31, 2002, the company was in compliance with its
financial covenants. The credit agreements provide the company with access to adequate and competitive funding under unusual market conditions. During Z
there were no borrowings outstanding under the credit agreements.

Notes payable consist of the following:

December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001
Payable to banks $208  $139
Commercial paper 13 9
Total notes payable $221  $148
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The fair value of the company’s notes payable approximates the carrying amount due to the short maturity of these obligations. The weighted average interes
rate on notes payable was 5.7% and 7.6% at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001
Debentures — 9% due 2003 $ 200 $ 200
Eurobonds (EUR 300 million) — 5.875% due 2006 310 264
Debentures — 9.1% due 2008 125 125
Notes — 8.6% due 2010 325 325
Debentures — 7.75% due 2016 243 243
Other (various interest rates with maturities of 2002-2012) 100 157
$1,303 $1,314
Less current maturities 211 19
Total long—term debt, net of current maturities $1,092  $1,295

Annual maturities of long—term debt in the next five years are $211 million, $15 million, $5 million, $318 million and $8 million.

The company paid interest on short-term and long—term debt totaling $141 million, $151 million and $181 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The fair value of long-term debt (including current maturities) was $1,457 million and $1,348 million as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and was estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses based on incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Preferred Stock

Although most of its assets have been divested, WFC remains a legal entity with assets consisting primarily of leveraged leases (see Note 5). WFC also has

349,300 shares of Series B preferred stock outstanding as of December 31, 2002, with a face value of $100 per share, an annual dividend of $6.55 per share
mandatory redemption date of September 1, 2008. As of December 31, 2001, WFC had the above listed Series B preferred stock outstanding as well as 250,
shares of Series C preferred stock outstanding with a face value of $100 per share, an annual dividend of $6.09 per share and a mandatory redemption date

February 1, 2002. The Series C preferred stock was redeemed on the mandatory redemption date. The preferred stock amounts are included within minority

interests in the consolidated balance sheets, and the carrying amounts approximate fair value.

The preferred stockholders are entitled to vote together on a share—for-share basis with WFC’s common stockholder, Whirlpool Corporation. Preferred stock
dividends are payable quarterly. At its option, WFC may redeem the Series B at any time on or after September 1, 2003. The redemption price is $100 per sh
plus any accrued unpaid dividends and the applicable redemption premium, if redeemed early. Commencing September 1, 2003, WFC must pay $1,750,000
year to a sinking fund for the benefit of the Series B preferred stockholders, with a final payment of $26,250,000 due on or before September 1, 2008.

The company and WFC are parties to a support agreement. Pursuant to the agreement, if at the close of any quarter WFC'’s net earnings available for fixed
charges (as defined) for the preceding 12 months is less than a stipulated amount, the company is required to make a cash payment to WFC equal to the
insufficiency within 60 days of the end of the quarter. The company was not required to make any payments under this agreement during 2002, 2001 or 2000
The support agreement may be terminated by either WFC or the company upon 30 days notice, provided that certain conditions are met. The company has a
agreed to maintain ownership of at least 70% of WFC's voting stock.
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* 09 GUARANTEES, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Guarantees

The company guarantees the bills of exchange related to a European business (“affiliate”) in which Whirlpool is a minority shareholder. These bills of exchanc
are short-term agreements, usually for 90 days, which allow the issuer to convert its receivables into cash, less a minor fee paid to the bank. The bills of
exchange are issued both by the company for loans made to the affiliate and by the affiliate for its trade accounts receivable. In the event the affiliate defaults
its obligations under any of the bills of exchange, the company would be liable for the related amounts. The company has limited recourse provisions against
assets of the affiliate in the event of its insolvency. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the company had approximately $30 million and $24 million of
guarantees outstanding for the bills of exchange related to the affiliate.

The company also has guarantee arrangements in place in a Brazilian subsidiary. As a standard business practice in Brazil, the subsidiary guarantees custor
lines of credit at commercial banks following its normal credit policies. In the event that a customer were to default on its line of credit with the bank, the
subsidiary would be required to satisfy the obligation with the bank, and the receivable would revert back to the subsidiary. The total amount of the related
guarantees at December 31, 2002 and 2001, is approximately $66 million and $124 million, respectively. The only recourse available on these guarantees wc
be legal or administrative collection efforts directed against the customer.

The company provides guarantees of indebtedness for various consolidated subsidiaries. Guarantee agreements for consolidated subsidiaries totaled $1.4 bi
and $1.3 billion at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Product warranty reserves are established in the same period that revenue from the sale of the related products is recognized. The amounts of those reserve
based on established terms and the company’s best estimate of the amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the balance
date. The product warranty reserves increased in 2002 due to increased sales volume and an extension of certain product warranty terms from one to two ye
various European operations. The following represents a reconciliation of the changes in product warranty reserves for the periods presented:

December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001

Balance at January 1 $ 108 $114
Warranties issued 228 198
Warranties acquired 7 —

Settlements made (214) (203)
Other changes (1) (1)
Balance at December 31 $128 $ 108
Current portion $ 71 $ 63
Non-current portion 57 45
Total $128 $ 108

Commitments and Contingencies

The company is involved in various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. Management, after taking into consideration legal counsel’'s evalua
of such actions, is of the opinion that the outcome of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the company’s financial position.
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At December 31, 2002, the company had non-cancelable operating lease commitments totaling $203 million. The annual future minimum lease payments ar
detailed in the table below.

Millions of dollars

2003 $ 54
2004 41
2005 34
2006 31
2007 26
Thereafter 17
Total non—cancelable operating lease commitments $203

The company’s rent expense was $72 million, $98 million and $93 million for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

* 10 HEDGES AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company is exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, domestic and foreign interest rates, and commaodity prices. Fluctua
in these rates and prices can affect the company’s operating results and financial condition. The company manages its exposure to these market risks throug
operating and financing activities, and through the use of derivative financial instruments. The company does not enter into derivative financial instruments fol
trading purposes.

Using derivative markets means assuming counter—party credit risk. Counter—party risk relates to the loss the company could incur if a counter—party defaulte
on a derivative contract. The company deals only with investment—grade counterparties to these contracts and monitors its overall credit risk and exposure to
individual counter—parties. The company does not anticipate nonperformance by any counter—parties. The amount of counter—party credit exposure is genere
the unrealized gains on such derivative contracts. The company does not require, nor does it post, collateral or security on such contracts.

The following summarizes the outstanding derivative contracts at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the exposures to which they relate:

Notional Amount

in Millions of Dollars

Exposure Derivative 2002 2001 Hedge Type Term

Forecasted cross Foreign exchange $324 $ 421 Cash flow or Various, up to

currency cashflows forwards fair value hedge 18 months
Non-functional Foreign exchange $533 $ 501 Undesignated Various, up to 6 months
currency asset/liability forwards

Raw Material Purchases Commodity swaps $ 29 $ 14 Cash flow hedge Various, up to 18 months
Floating Rate Debt Interest rate swaps $100 $ 100 Cash flow hedge 2006

Fixed Rate Debt Interest rate swaps $200 $ — Fair value hedge 2003
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Forecasted cross currency cashflows relate primarily to foreign currency denominated expenditures and intercompany financing agreements, royalty agreeme
and dividends. Non—functional currency asset and liability hedges are undesignated, but relate primarily to short-term payables and receivables and
intercompany loans. Commodity swaps relate to raw material purchases (for example, copper and aluminum) used in the manufacturing process. Unrealized
gains and losses on the above foreign currency exchange contracts and commodities swaps were not significant as of December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The company’s $100 million interest-rate swap maturing in 2006 is designated and is effective as a hedge of future cash payments, and is treated as a cash-
hedge for accounting purposes. The fair value of this contract was a loss of $12 million as of December 31, 2002, and a loss of $4 million as of December 31,
2001.

The company’s $200 million interest-rate swap maturing in 2003 is designated and is effective as a hedge of future cash payments and is treated as a fair-v:
hedge for accounting purposes. The fair value of this contract was a gain of $1 million as of December 31, 2002.

The company has designated a portion of its Euro—denominated, fixed-rate debt as a hedge to protect the value of its net investments in its European
subsidiaries. Translation adjustments related to this debt are not included in the income statement, but are shown in the cumulative translation adjustment ac
included in accumulated other comprehensive income. During the year ended December 31, 2002, the company recognized $1 million of net losses included
the cumulative translation adjustment related to this net-investment hedge.

During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, the company’s gains and losses related to the ineffective portion of its hedging instruments were
immaterial. The company did not recognize any gains or losses during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, for cash—flow hedges that were
discontinued because the forecasted transaction was not probable to occur.

The amount of unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments included in other comprehensive income at December 31, 2002, that will be reclassified
earnings during 2003 is not significant.

The company managed a portfolio of domestic and cross—currency interest-rate swaps that effectively converted U.S. dollar denominated debt into that of
various European currencies. Through May 15, 2000, such local currency denominated debt served as an effective hedge against the company’s European c
flows and net assets. On May 15, 2000, the company undesignated these contracts as hedges of the net investment in its European operations and entered i
offsetting Euro—denominated currency swaps, effectively locking in its positive cash position on the original swap portfolio. These contracts were not designat
as hedges and, therefore, were marked—to—market each period through earnings as a component of interest expense, with unrealized gains (losses) on the N
2000 swap contracts substantially offsetting subsequent unrealized (losses) gains on the original swap portfolio. On October 5, 2001, the company monetizec
above-referenced swaps, receiving $209 million in cash.

The net transaction losses recognized in other income (expense) in the statement of operations, including gains and losses from those contracts not qualifyin
hedges, were $17 million in 2002, $11 million in 2001 and $17 million in 2000.
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* 11 STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

On February 15, 2000, the company announced that its Board of Directors approved an extension of the company’s stock repurchase program to $1 billion. T
additional $750 million share repurchase authorization extends the previously authorized $250 million repurchase program that was announced March 1, 199
The shares are to be purchased in the open market and through privately negotiated sales as the company deems appropriate. The company has purchased
million shares at a cost of $683 million through December 31, 2002, under this stock repurchase program, of which 8.7 million shares ($427 million) were
purchased in 2000, 0.7 million shares ($43 million) were purchased in 2001, and 0.7 million shares ($46 million) were purchased in 2002. The 2002 shares w
purchased from one of the company’s U.S. pension plans at an average cost of $66.32 per share, which was based upon an average of the high and low mar
prices on the date of purchase. The 2001 share repurchases included 0.6 million shares that were purchased from one of the company’s U.S. pension plans
cost of $41 million, or $67.78 per share, which was based upon an average of the high and low market prices on the date of purchase.

In addition to its common stock, the company has 10 million authorized shares of preferred stock (par value $1 per share), none of which is outstanding.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, consists of:

Millions of dollars 2002 2001

Foreign currency translation adjustments $(821)  $(673)
Derivative financial instruments (20) (17)
Minimum pension liability adjustments (158) )
Total $(999)  $(697)

Preferred Stock Purchase Rights

One Preferred Stock Purchase Right (Rights) is outstanding for each share of common stock. The Rights, which expire May 22, 2008, will become exercisabl
days after a person or group (an Acquiring Person) has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding
common stock (the Trigger Date) or 10 business days after the commencement, or public disclosure of an intention to commence, a tender offer or exchange
offer by a person that could result in beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding common stock. Each Right entitles the holder to purchase from tl
company one one-thousandth of a share of a Junior Participating Preferred Stock, Series B, par value $1.00 per share, of the company at a price of $300 pel
one-thousandth of a Preferred Share subject to adjustment.

If a person becomes an Acquiring Person, proper provision shall be made so that each holder of a Right, other than Rights that are or were beneficially owne
the Acquiring Person (which will thereafter be void), shall thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise of such Right that number of shares of common
stock (or other securities) having at the time of such transaction a market value of two times the exercise price of the Right. If a person becomes an Acquiring
Person and the company is involved in a merger or other business combination transaction where the company is not the surviving corporation or where com
stock is changed or exchanged or in a transaction or transactions in which 50% or more of its consolidated assets or earning power are sold, proper provisior
shall be made so that each holder of a Right (other than such Acquiring Person) shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon the exercise thereof at the the
current exercise price of the Right, that number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company which at the time of such transaction would have a marl
value of two times the exercise price of the Right. In addition, if an Acquiring Person, does not have beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the common stoc
the company’s Board of Directors has the option of exchanging all or part of the Rights for an equal number of shares of common stock in the manner descrik
in the Rights Agreement.

Prior to the Trigger Date, the Board of Directors of the company may redeem the Rights in whole, but not in part, at a
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price of $.01 per Right, payable in cash, shares of common stock or any other consideration deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors. Immediately upor
action of the Board of Directors ordering redemption of the Rights, the ability of holders to exercise the Rights will terminate and such holders will only be able
to receive the redemption price.

Until such time as the Rights become exercisable, the Rights have no voting or dividend privileges and are attached to, and do not trade separately from, the
common stock.

The company covenants and agrees that it will cause to be reserved and kept available at all times a sufficient number of shares of Preferred Stock (and follo
the occurrence of a Triggering Event, shares of common stock and/or other securities) to permit the exercise in full of all Rights from time to time outstanding.

* 12 STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLANS

Stock option and incentive plans are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related Interpretations. Generally, no compensation expense is recognized for stock options with exercise prices equal to the market value
underlying shares of stock at the date of grant. Stock options generally have 10—year terms, and vest and become fully exercisable over a two-year period af
date of grant. Compensation expense related to the company’s stock based incentive plans is recognized ratably over each plan’s defined vesting period. Pre
expenses under the company’s stock based incentive plans were $20 million, $26 million and $1 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000.

The company’s stock option and incentive plans permit the grant of stock options and other stock awards covering up to 14.5 million shares to key employees
the company and its subsidiaries, of which 4.9 million shares are available for grant at December 31, 2002. Outstanding restricted and phantom shares totale
1,557,123 with a weighted—average grant—date fair value of $56.01 per share at December 31, 2002, and 1,060,000 with a weighted—average grant—date fair
value of $55.35 per share at December 31, 2001.

Under the Nonemployee Director Stock Ownership Plan, each nonemployee director is automatically granted 400 shares of common stock annually and is
eligible for a stock option grant of 600 shares if the company’s earnings meet a prescribed earnings formula. In addition, each nonemployee director is award
annually deferred compensation in the form of 400 shares of phantom stock, which is converted into common stock on a one—for-one basis and paid when tt
director leaves the Board. This plan provides for the grant of up to 300,000 shares as either stock or stock options, of which 152,385 shares are available for |
at December 31, 2002. The stock options vest and become exercisable six months after date of grant. There were no significant expenses under this plan for
2002, 2001 or 2000.

The fair value of stock options used to compute proforma net earnings and diluted net earnings per share disclosures, as presented in Note 1, is the estimate
present value at grant date using the Black—Scholes option—pricing model with the following assumptions for 2002, 2001 and 2000: expected volatility of 33.8
32.6% and 28.6%; dividend yield of 2.2%, 2.3% and 2.7%; risk—free interest rate of 2.7%, 4.3% and 5.1%, and a weighted—average expected option life of 5
years for all three years.
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A summary of stock option information follows:

2002 2001 2000

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted—

Average Average Average

Number Exercise Number Exercise Number Exercise

Thousands of shares,except per share data of Shares Price of Shares Price of Shares Price
Outstanding at January 1 6,066 $ 51.83 6,437 $ 50.86 4,605 $ 5221
Granted 1,466 67.07 1,401 54.30 2,222 47.59
Exercised (1,395) 51.48 (1,508) 50.19 (190) 42.23
Canceled or expired 172) 52.72 (264) 50.49 (200) 53.83
Outstanding at December 31 5,965 $ 55.63 6,066 $ 51.83 6,437 $ 50.86
Exercisable at December 31 3,639 $ 52.59 3,574 $ 52.68 3,545 $ 5244
Fair value of options granted during the year $ 18.28 $ 15.59 $ 12.23

Of the outstanding options at December 31, 2002, 2.6 million options, of which 2.3 million are exercisable at a weighted—average price of $49.24, have
exercise prices ranging from $38.38 to $52.47 and a weighted—-average remaining life of 6.3 years. The remaining 3.4 million outstanding options, of which
1.3 million are exercisable at a weighted—average price of $57.97, have exercise prices ranging from $53.06 to $77.85 and a weighted—average remaining
of 7.6 years.

* 13 RESTRUCTURING AND RELATED CHARGES

Restructuring Charges

Through December 31, 2002, the company had approved all phases of a restructuring program that began in the fourth quarter of 2000 and resulted in
cumulative pre—tax restructuring charges of $251 million, of which $101 million was recognized during 2002 and $150 million was recognized during 2001.
These charges have been identified as a separate component of operating profit. The restructuring plan and related charges relate primarily to the closing
refrigeration plant in the company’s Latin American region, a parts packing facility and a cooking plant in the North American region, a plastic components
facility in the Asian region, the relocation of several laundry manufacturing facilities in Europe, and a restructuring of the company’s microwave business in
its European region. Employees terminated to date under the plan include both hourly and salaried employees. However, the majority are hourly personne
the facilities listed above. For the initiatives announced through December 31, 2002, the company expects to eliminate over 7,000 employees, of which
approximately 5,000 had left the company through December 31, 2002.

Other Related Charges

As a result of the company’s restructuring activity, $122 million of pre—tax restructuring related charges, of which $60 million was recognized during 2002
and $62 million was recognized during 2001, have also been recorded primarily within cost of products sold. The 2002 charges include $4 million and $1
million write—downs of buildings in the North American and Latin American regions, inventory write—offs of $1 million in Europe, and $16 million of
miscellaneous equipment in North America, Europe and Latin America, as well as $38 million in cash costs incurred during the year for various restructurin
related activities, such as relocating employees and equipment and concurrent operating costs. The 2001 charges included $12 million in write—downs of
various fixed assets, primarily buildings that are no longer used in the company’s business activities in its Latin American region, $7 million of excess
inventory due to the parts distribution consolidation in North America, $25 million in various assets in its North American, European and Asian regions,
which were primarily made up of equipment no longer used in its business, and $18 million in cash costs incurred during 2001 for various restructuring
related activities.
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Details of the restructuring liability balance and full year restructuring and related activity for 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Beginning Charge Ending
Millions of dollars Balance to Earnings Cash Paid Non-cash Translation Acquisitions Balance
2002
Restructuring
Termination costs $ 73 $ 92 $ (60 $ — $ 4 $ 7 $ 116
Non-employee exit costs 4 9 @) — — — 6
Related charges
Miscellaneous buildings — 5 — (5) — — —
Inventory — 1 — 1) — — —
Miscellaneous equipment — 16 — (16) — — —
Various cash costs — 38 (38) — — — —
Total $ 7% 161 $ (1050 $ (220 $ 4 $ 7 % 122
2001
Restructuring
Termination costs $ 5 8 134 $ (64) $ — $ 2 $ — $ 73
Non-employee exit costs — 16 (12) — — — 4
Related charges
Miscellaneous buildings — 12 — (12) — — —
Inventory — 7 — @) — — —
Miscellaneous equipment — 25 — (25) — — —
Various cash costs — 18 (28) — — — —
Total $ 5 $ 212 $ (94 $  (44) $ 2 $ — $ 77

* 14 PRODUCT RECALLS

In September 2001, the company announced a voluntary recall of 1.8 million microwave hood combination units sold under the Whirlpool, KitchenAid, and
Sears Kenmore brands. The company recognized a product recall pre—tax charge of $300 million ($184 million after tax) during the third quarter of 2001 ar
recorded this charge as a separate component of operating profit. During the fourth quarter of 2001 this liability was reduced by $79 million ($48 million afts
tax) due to the development of a more efficient service repair procedure, which enabled faster repairs and reduced costs. During 2002, the company incurr
additional charges of approximately $9 million ($6 million after tax) for costs related to this recall.

In January of 2002, the company announced a voluntary recall of approximately 1.4 million dehumidifier units sold under the Whirlpool, ComfortAire, and
Sears Kenmore brands. The company recognized a product recall pre—tax charge of $74 million ($45 million after tax) during the fourth quarter of 2001 anc
recorded this charge as a separate component of operating profit.
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* 15 INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense from continuing operations are as follows:

Year ended December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001 2000
Current:
Federal $101 $ 201 $149
State and local (6) 14 14
Foreign 109 34 34
204 249 197
Deferred:
Federal a7 (121) 26
State and local 3 (21) 3
Foreign (61) (64) (26)
(11) (206) 3
Total income tax expense $193 $ 43 $200

Domestic and foreign earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and other items are as follows:

Year ended December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001 2000
Domestic $485  $204 $479
Foreign 10 (111) 98
Total earnings from continuing operations before taxes and other items $495 $ 93 $577

Earnings before income taxes and other items, including discontinued operations (refer to Note 5), were $427 million, $58 million and $577 million for 2002
2001 and 2000, respectively.

Reconciliations between tax expense at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate of 35% and the consolidated effective income tax rate for earnings befor
income taxes and other items from continuing operations are as follows:

Year ended December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001 2000
Income tax expense computed at U.S. federal statutory rate $173 $33 $202
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit 3 4) 5
Nondeductible expenses 6 7 2)
Nondeductible goodwill amortization — 6

Excess foreign taxes 4 11 1
Foreign dividends and subpart F income 7 13 13
Foreign government tax incentive (15) (22) (21)
Foreign tax credits (29) 9) (20)
Deductible interest on capital (8) (18) 5)
Foreign withholding taxes 13 6 5
Valuation allowances 36 16 1
Other items, net 7) 4 4
Income tax expense $193 $43 $200

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities used for financial reporting



purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
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Significant components of the company’s deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

Year ended December 31 — Millions of dollars 2002 2001

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment $150 $115
Financial services leveraged leases 69 120
Pensions 11 95
Software costs 16 21
Contested liabilities 24 22
LIFO Inventory 17 14
Other 108 73
Total deferred tax liabilities 395 460
Deferred tax assets

Postretirement obligation 205 196
Restructuring costs 29 12
Product warranty accrual 21 19
Receivable and inventory allowances a7 35
Loss carryforwards 260 182
Product recall reserves — 93
Employee payroll and benefits 71 45
Other 130 144
Total deferred tax assets 763 726
Valuation allowances for deferred tax assets (65) (29)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances 698 697
Net deferred tax assets $303 $237

Other deferred tax liabilities relate to temporary differences in multiple foreign jurisdictions and various other items. Other deferred tax assets relate to varic
reserves and accrued expenses, financing activities, and various other items.

The company has recorded valuation allowances to reflect the estimated amount of net operating loss carryforwards that may not be realized. At Decembe
2002, the company has foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $632 million, $525 million of which do not expire, with substantially all of the remaining
$107 million expiring in various years through 2007.

The company provides deferred taxes on the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates to the extent such earnings are expected to be
remitted. Generally, earnings have been remitted only when no significant net tax liability would have been incurred. No provision has been made for U.S.
foreign taxes that may result from future remittances of the undistributed earnings ($440 million at December 31, 2002) of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates
expected to be reinvested indefinitely. Determination of the deferred income tax liability on these unremitted earnings is not practicable as such liability, if
any, is dependent on circumstances existing when remittance occurs.

The company paid income taxes of $126 million in 2002, $148 million in 2001 and $262 million in 2000.

Income taxes payable of $186 million and $109 million are included in other current liabilities at December 31, 2002 and 2001.
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Y 16 PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS PLANS

The company sponsors defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution 401(k) plans for active employees and certain medical benefit plans for retir
The company’s funding policy is to contribute to its U.S. pension plans amounts sufficient to meet the minimum funding requirement as defined by employe
benefit and tax laws, plus additional amounts which the company may determine to be appropriate. In certain countries other than the U.S., the funding of
pension plans is not common practice. The company has several unfunded, non-U.S. pension plans in certain of these countries. The company pays for r
medical benefits as they are incurred.

The company’s defined benefit pension plans include contributory and non—contributory plans and cover substantially all North American employees and
certain Brazilian and European employees. Pension benefits are based primarily on either service and compensation during a specified period before
retirement or specified amounts for each year of service. Plan assets are held in trust and consist primarily of common stock and fixed income securities al
cash. At December 31, 2002, stocks represent 75% of the market value of pension assets for the U.S. plans, and fixed income securities and cash represe
25%. As of December 31, 2002, the company’s U.S. pension plans held as investments approximately $51 million, or 1 million shares, of Whirlpool
Corporation common stock. This investment represented approximately 4% of the total market value of assets held by these plans as of December 31, 20(

The U.S. pension plans provide that in the event of a plan termination within five years following a change in control of the company, any assets held by th
plans in excess of the amounts needed to fund accrued benefits would be used to provide additional benefits to plan participants. A change in control gene
means either a change in the majority of the incumbent board of directors or an acquisition of 25% or more of the voting power of the company’s outstandi
stock, without the approval of a majority of the incumbent board.

The company maintains a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering substantially all U.S. employees. Company matching contributions for domestic hourly
and certain other employees under the plan, based on the company’s annual operating results and the level of individual participant’s contributions, amour
to $16 million, $12 million and $12 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The company sponsors plans to provide selected health care benefits for eligible retired employees. Eligible retirees are those full-time U.S. employees wi
10 years of service who have attained age 55 while in service with the company. The company’s practice with respect to these plans is to fund expenses a
incurred. The Plan is currently noncontributory and contains cost-sharing features such as deductibles, coinsurance and a lifetime maximum. The compan
has reserved the right to modify the benefits. No significant postretirement medical benefits are provided by the company to non-U.S. employees.

The company’s pension plans were underfunded on a combined basis as of December 31, 2002, which resulted in a non—cash, after-tax charge to equity
$151 million to recognize a minimum pension liability. While certain plans were overfunded, the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation
and fair value of plan assets for the underfunded plans at December 31, 2002, were $1,572 million, $1,414 million and $1,168 million. Although the
company’s pension plans were overfunded on a combined basis as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, several of the plans did not hold or had minimal asse
and were therefore underfunded. The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets for these plans were $197
million, $187 million and $109 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2001, and $83 million, $73 million and $6 million, respectively, as of December 31,
2000.
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The company’s obligations and related expense for pension and postretirement health care plans are as follow:

Millions of dollars

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation as of January 1
Service cost

Interest cost

Plan participants’ contributions
Amendments

Business combinations

Actuarial (gain) loss

Settlements

Benefits paid

Curtailments

Special termination benefits
Foreign currency exchange rate changes

Benefit obligation as of December 31

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets as of January 1
Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Settlements

Plan participants’ contributions

401 (h) transfer

Benefits paid

Foreign currency exchange rate changes

Fair value of plan assets as of December 31
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Pension Benefits

us Foreign
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
$1,269 $1,090 $1,044 $145 $193 $198
56 53 38 7 8 10
95 88 86 11 13 15
29 48 11 (11) 3) —
— — — 25 — —
124 55 44 12 4) (6)
— — — — (36) —
(70) (65) (165) (8) (11) (10)
— — — (13) 1) —
— — 32— @ —
— — — 4 (11) (24)
$1,503 $1,269 $1,090 $172 $145 $193
$1,460 $1,794 $2,050 $ 97 $147 $151
(203) (275) (72) 1 6 15
3 6 1 2 1 2
— — — (11) (36) —
— — — 1 1 —
— — (0 — — —
(70) (65) (165) (8) (11) (10)
— — — @ (11 (11)
$1,190 $1,460 $1,794 $ 81 $ 97 $147




Millions of dollars

Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) cost and total amount
recognized:

Funded status as of December 31

Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain)

Unrecognized prior service cost

Unrecognized transition asset

Prepaid (accrued) cost as of December 31

Prepaid cost

Accrued benefit liability
Intangible asset

Equity Charge and Other

Total recognized as of December 31

Assumptions as of December 31
Discount rate

Expected return on assets

Rate of compensation increase

Components of net periodic benefit cost (credit)
Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Recognized actuarial (gain)

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization of transition asset

Net periodic benefit cost (credit)
Curtailments

Special termination benefits
Settlements

Total pension cost (credit)

Pension Benefits (continued)

us Foreign
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
$(313) $ 191 $ 704 $ (91) $ (48) $ (46)
407 (118) (659) 17 a7 (42)
129 115 78 5 6 1
- @ (©) 1 8 14
$ 223 $ 187 $ 120 $ (68) $ (51) $ (73)
$ 43 $ 219 $ 155 $ — $ 5 $ 5
(188) (37) (43) (92) (63) (80)
128 (5) 1) 5 5 2
240 10 9 19 2 —
$ 223 $ 187 $ 120 $ (68) % (51) % (73)
6.75% 7.50% 8.00% 5.5—11.3% 5.0—11.3% 5.0—11.3%
8.75% 10.00% 10.50% 5.5—11.3% 6.0—11.3% 6.0—11.3%
4.50% 5.00% 5.00% 2.5—8.0% 2.5—8.0% 1.0—8.0%
$ 56 $ 53 $ 38 $ 6 $ 8 $ 10
95 89 86 11 12 15
(175) 177) (164) (@) (12) (24)
(22) (39) (37) @ @ @
14 11 10 — — —
@ @ 4 2 2 3
(33) (61) (72) 11 9 12
— — — (10) ) —
— — 32 ) 3 —
— — (71) (©) (20) —
$ (33) $ (61) $ (110) $ 4) $ 9) $ 12
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Postretirement Medical Benefits

Millions of dollars 2002 2001 2000

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation as of January 1 $ 525 $ 439 $ 414
Service cost 14 11 9
Interest cost 41 34 32
Amendments 9 (43) -
Actuarial loss 123 108 6
Benefits paid (39) (24) (22)
Benefit obligation as of December 31 $ 655 $ 525 $ 439
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ — $ — $—
Contributions 39 24 22
Benefits paid (39) (24) (22)
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 $ — $ — $—

Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) cost and total amount recognized

Funded status as of December 31 $ (655) $ (525) $(439)
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) loss 215 87 (21)
Unrecognized prior service cost 47 (43) —
Prepaid (accrued) cost as of December 31 $ (487) $ (481) $(460)
Prepaid cost at December 31 $ — $ — $—
Accrued benefit liability at December 31 (487) (481) (460)
Total recognized as of December 31 $ (487) $ (481) $(460)
Weighted average assumptions as of December 31

Discount rate 6.75% 7.50% 8.00%
Medical costs trend rate:

For year ending December 31 9.5—10.5% 8.5—10.5% 6.00%
Ultimate medical trend rate (2006) 5.50% 6.00%
Components of net periodic benefit cost

Service cost $ 14 $ 11 $ 9
Interest cost 41 34 32
Recognized actuarial loss 5 — —
Amortization of prior service cost 4) — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 56 $ 45 $ 41
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The medical cost trend significantly affects the reported postretirement benefit cost and benefit obligations. A one—percentage—point change in the assume
health care cost trend rate would have the following effects:

One One
Percentage Percentage
Point Point
Millions of dollars Increase Decrease
Effect on total service cost and interest cost components $ 1 $ )
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 17 (29)

Y 17 BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated on a regular basi:
the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources to an individual segment and in assessing performanc
the segment.

The company identifies such segments based upon geographical regions of operations because each operating segment manufactures home appliances :
related components, but serves strategically different markets. The chief operating decision maker evaluates performance based upon each segment’s
operating income, which is defined as income before interest income and sundry, interest expense, taxes, minority interests, and before one-time charges
Total assets by segment are those assets directly associated with the respective operating activities. The “Other/Elimination” column primarily includes
corporate expenses, assets and eliminations, as well as all other one-time charges. Intersegment sales are eliminated within each region with the exceptic
compressor sales out of Latin America, which are included in Other/Eliminations.

Sales activity with Sears, Roebuck and Co., a North American major home appliance retailer, represented 21%, 21% and 20% of consolidated net sales in
2002, 2001, 2000, respectively. Related receivables were 23%, 25% and 22% of consolidated trade receivables as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
respectively.

The company conducts business in two countries that individually comprised over 10% of consolidated net sales and total assets within the last three year:
The United States represented 59%, 59%, and 55% of net sales for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, while Brazil totaled 8%, 9% and 11% for 2002, 20(
and 2000, respectively. As a percentage of total assets, the United States accounted for 40%, 44% and 41% at the end of 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectiv
Brazil accounted for 11%, 14% and 18% of total assets at the end of 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

As described above, the company’s chief operating decision maker reviews each operating segment’s performance based upon operating income excludir
one-time charges. In 2002, these one—time charges were comprised of restructuring and other related charges, product recall charges and goodwill impait
charges in Asia. These charges are included in operating profit on a consolidated basis and included in the Other/Eliminations column in the tables below.
2002 year-to—date amounts, the operating segments recorded total restructuring and related charges (refer to Note 13) as follows: North America — $43
million, Europe — $79 million, Latin America — $24 million, Asia — $11 million and Corporate — $4 million, for a total of $161 million. Also included in
Other/Eliminations during 2002 is $9 million of product recall related charges (refer to Note 14) recorded in the fourth quarter and $9 million in goodwill
impairment charges. In 2001, the operating segments recorded total restructuring and related charges as follows: North America — $35 million, Europe — $!
million, Latin America — $68 million, Asia — $13 million and Corporate — $4 million for a total of $212 million. Also included in the Other/Eliminations

column during 2001 is $295 million of product recall charges related to the North American region.
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Millions of dollars

Net sales
2002
2001
2000

Intangible amortization
2002
2001
2000

Depreciation
2002
2001
2000

Operating profit (loss)
2002
2001
2000

Total assets
2002
2001
2000

Capital expenditures
2002
2001
2000
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Geographic Segments

North

Latin

Other/

Total

America Europe America Asia Eliminations Whirlpool
$7,306 $2,199 $ 1,266 $391 $ (146) $ 11,016
6,581 2,058 1,487 373 (156) 10,343
6,223 2,156 1,706 390 (150) 10,325
$ — $ — $ — $— $ 14 $ 14
3 13 3 5 4 28

3 13 3 5 5 29

$ 197 $ 83 $ 80 $16 $ 15 $ 391
173 78 91 15 11 368
157 74 106 17 17 371

$ 830 $ 8 $ 107 $14 $ (3400 $ 692
758 39 134 19 (644) 306
682 102 125 21 (123) 807
$2913 $2015 $ 1054 $516 $ 133 $ 6,631
2,591 2,067 1,339 653 317 6,967
2,624 1,948 1,600 704 26 6,902
$ 165 $ 103 $ 112 $ 15 $ 35 $ 430
191 87 80 10 10 378
175 94 86 10 10 375




Y 18 QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended

Sept. Restated
Millions of dollars, except per share data Dec. 31 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31
2002
Net sales $2,947 $2,759 $2,737 $2,574
Cost of products sold 2,266 2,114 2,103 1,982
Earnings from continuing operations 14 101 63 84
Net earnings (loss) (29) 101 63 (529)
Per share of common stock
Basic earnings from continuing operations $ 0.20 $ 1.48 $ 0.93 $ 1.25
Basic net earnings (loss) (0.43) 1.48 0.93 (7.86)
Diluted earnings from continuing operations $ 0.20 $ 1.46 $ 0.91 $ 1.21
Diluted net earnings (loss) (0.42) 1.46 0.91 (7.63)
Dividends $ 0.34 $ 0.34 $ 0.34 $ 0.34
Significant after—tax items included in the quarterly net earnings (loss):
Restructuring and related charges (Note 13) $ B84 $ (11) $ (199 $ (8
Impairment charge related to minority investment (Note 7) — — (22) —
Goodwill write—off of an Asian entity (Note 3) 9) — — —
Product recalls (Note 14) (6) — — —
Discontinued operations (Note 5) (43) — — —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (Note 3) — — — (613)

The net loss (and related per share amounts) for the restated first quarter as shown above differ from the originally filed amounts due to the adoption of SF
No. 142, as discussed in Note 3.

Three Months Ended

Sept. Mar.
Millions of dollars, except per share data Dec. 31 30 Jun. 30 31
2001
Net sales $2,647 $2,594 $2,585 $2,517
Cost of products sold 1,989 1,988 1,989 1,959
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 21 (94) 74 33
Net earnings (loss) 21 (94) 53 41
Per share of common stock
Basic earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.31 $(1.40) $1.12 $ 0.49
Basic net earnings (loss) 0.31 (1.40) 0.80 0.62
Diluted earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.31 $(1.40) $1.10 $ 0.49
Diluted net earnings (loss) 0.31 (1.40) 0.78 0.61
Dividends $ 0.34 $ 0.34 $ 0.34 $ 0.34
Significant after—tax items included in the quarterly net earnings (loss):
Restructuring and related charges (Note 13) $ 91) $ (11 $ (14) $ (40
Product recalls (Note 14) 3 (184) — —
Discontinued operations (Note 5) — — (22) —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (Note 1) — — — 8
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Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Whirlpool Corporation

Benton Harbor, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Whirlpool Corporation as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform tt
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Whirlpool
Corporation as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period end
December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002 the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible ass
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2001 the Company changed its method of accounting for derivative instruments and hedgi
activities.

/sl Ernst & Young
LLP

Chicago, lllinois

February 4, 2003
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Report by Management on the Consolidated Financial Statements

The management of Whirlpool Corporation has prepared the accompanying financial statements. The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & You
LLP, independent auditors, whose report, based upon their audits, expresses the opinion that these financial statements present fairly the consolidated financ
position, results of operations and cash flows of Whirlpool and its subsidiaries in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State
Their audits are conducted in conformity with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.

The financial statements were prepared from the company’s accounting records, books and accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
material transactions. The company maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that the company’s accounting record:
books and accounts are accurate and that transactions are properly recorded in the company’s books and records, and the company’s assets are maintained
accounted for, in accordance with management’s authorizations. The company’s accounting records, policies and internal controls are regularly reviewed by :
internal audit staff.

The audit committee of the board of directors of the company is composed of five independent directors who, in the opinion of the board, meet the relevant
financial experience, literacy, and expertise requirements. The audit committee provides independent and objective oversight of the company’s accounting
functions and internal controls and monitors the objectivity of the company’s financial statements, (2) the company’s compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, (3) the independent auditor’s qualifications and independence, and (4) the performance of the company’s internal audit function and independe
auditors. In performing these functions, the committee has the responsibility to review and discuss the annual audited financial statements and quarterly finan
statements and related reports with management and independent auditors, including the company'’s disclosures under “Management’s Discussion and Analy
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;” to monitor the adequacy of financial disclosure; and to retain and terminate the company’s independent
auditors and exercise the committee’s sole authority to review and approve all audit engagement fees and terms and preapprove the nature, extent, and cost
non-audit services provided by independent auditors (for 2002 and prior, the board of directors held this responsibility).

/sl R. Stephen Barrett, Jr.
R. Stephen Barrett, Jr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 27, 2003
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Eleven-Year Consolidated Statistical Review

Millions of dollars, except share and employee data 2002 2001 2000

Consolidated operations

Net sales $11,016 $10,343 $10,325
Operating profit 692 306 807
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and other items 495 93 577
Earnings (loss) from continuing operationzs 262 34 367
Earnings (loss) frgm discontinued operations (43) (21) —

Net earnings (loss) (394) 21 367
Net capital expenditures 430 378 375
Depreciation 391 368 371
Dividends 91 113 70

Consolidated financial position

Current assets 3,327 3,311 3,237
Current liabilities 3,505 3,102 3,303
Working capital (178) 209 (66)
Property, plant and equipment-net 2,338 2,052 2,134
Total assets 6,631 6,967 6,902
Long-term debt 1,092 1,295 795
Stockholders’ equity 739 1,458 1,684
Per share data
Basic earnings (loss) from continuing operations 3.86 0.51 5.24
Diluted earnings (loss) fr30m continuing operations 3.78 0.50 5.20
Diluted net earnings (loss) (5.68) 0.31 5.20
Dividends 1.36 1.36 1.36
Book value 10.67 21.44 23.84
Closing Stock Price — NYSE 52.22 73.33 47.69

. 4
Key ratios
Operating progt margin 6.3% 3.0% 7.8%
Pre-tax margin 4.5% 0.9% 5.6%
Net margin . 2.4% 0.3% 3.6%
Return on average stockhogders’ equity 14.8% 1.3% 20.7%
Return on average total assets 3.4% 0.4% 5.5%
Current assets to current liabilities 0 0.9x 1.1x 1.0x
Total debt—appliance business as a percent of invested capital 65.1% 48.0% 49.4%
Price earnings rl%tio — 236.5x 9.2x
Interest coverage 4.5x 1.6x 4.2x
Other data
Number of common shares outstanding (in thousands):
Average — on a diluted basis 69,267 68,036 70,637
Year—end 68,226 67,215 66,265
Number of stockholders (year—end) 8,556 8,840 11,780
Number of employees (year—end) u 68,272 61,923 62,527
Total return to shareholders (five year annualized) 1.4% 12.2% 0.3%

1 Restructuring and special operating charges were $161 million in 2002, $212 million in 2001, $405 million in 1997, $30 million in 1996, and $250 million in
1994.

2 The company’s financial services business was discontinued in 1997.

3 Includes cumulative effect of accounting changes: 2002 — Accounting for goodwill of ($613) million or ($8.84) per diluted share; 2001 — Accounting for
derivative instruments and hedging activities of $8 million or $0.12 per diluted share; 1993 — Accounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions of
($180) million or ($2.42) per diluted share.

4 Excluding one-time charges for restructuring and related charges, a minority investment write—off in a European business, goodwill write—off of an Asian
entity, product recalls, discontinued operations and accounting changes in 2002, selected key ratios would be as follows: a) Operating profit margin —7.9%
Pre-tax margin — 6.1%, c) Net margin — 3.8%, d) Return on average stockholders’ equity — 27%, e) Return on average total assets — 6.1%, and f) Interest
coverage — 6x. Excluding one-time charges for restructuring and related charges, product recalls, discontinued operations and accounting changes in 200
selected key ratios would be as follows: a) Operating profit margin — 7.9%, b) Pre—tax margin — 5.8%, c) Net margin — 3.6%, d) Return on average
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Millions of dollars, except share and employee data 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992

Consolidated operations $10,511 $10,323 $ 8,617 $ 8,523 $ 8,163 $ 7,949 $ 7,368 $ 7,097
Net sales

Operating profit 875 688 11 278 366 370 504 447
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and

other items 514 564 (171) 100 214 269 418 334
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 347 310 (46) 141 195 147 257 179
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatibns — 15 31 15 14 11 (28) 26
Net earnings (losS) 347 325 (a5) 156 209 158 51 205
Net capital expenditures 437 542 378 336 483 418 309 288
Depreciation 386 399 322 318 282 246 241 275
Dividends 103 102 102 101 100 90 85 77

Consolidated financial position

Current assets 3,177 3,882 4,281 3,812 3,541 3,078 2,708 2,740
Current liabilities 2,892 3,267 3,676 4,022 3,829 2,988 2,763 2,887
Working capital 285 615 605 (210) (288) 90 (55) (147)
Property, plant and equipment—net 2,178 2,418 2,375 1,798 1,779 1,440 1,319 1,325
Total assets 6,826 7,935 8,270 8,015 7,800 6,655 6,047 6,118
Long-term debt 714 1,087 1,074 955 983 885 840 1,215
Stockholders’ equity 1,867 2,001 1,771 1,926 1,877 1,723 1,648 1,600

Per share data

Basic earnings (loss) from continuing operations 4.61 4.09 (0.62) 1.90 2.64 1.98 3.60 2.55
Diluted earnings (loss) from continuing operations 4.56 4.06 (0.62) 1.88 2.60 1.95 3.47 2.46
Diluted net earnings (los3) 4.56 4.25 (0.20) 2.08 2.78 2.10 0.71 2.81
Dividends 1.36 1.36 1.36 1.36 1.36 1.22 1.19 1.10
Book value 24.55 26.16 23.71 25.93 25.40 23.21 23.17 22.91
Closing Stock Price — NYSE 65.06 55.38 55.00 46.63 53.25 50.25 66.50 44.63
Key ratios#

Operating profit margin 8.3% 6.7% 0.1% 3.3% 4.5% 4.7% 6.8% 6.3%
Pre—tax margin 4.9% 5.5% (2.0)% 1.2% 2.6% 3.4% 5.7% 4.7%
Net margirf 3.3% 3.0% (0.5)% 1.7% 2.4% 1.8% 3.5% 2.5%
Return on average stockholders’ eqtity 17.9% 17.2% (0.8)% 8.2% 11.6% 9.4% 14.2% 13.1%
Return on average total assets 4.2% 4.6% 0.7)% 1.8% 3.0% 2.8% 4.0% 3.3%
Current assets to current liabilities 1.1x 1.2x 1.2x 0.9x 0.9x 1.0x 1.0x 0.9x
Total debt-appliance business as a percent of invested €apital 37.7% 43.5% 46.1% 44.2% 45.2% 35.6% 33.8% 42.8%
Price earnings ratio 14.3x 13.0x — 22.4x 19.2x 23.9x 21.2x 15.9x
Interest CoveradéJ 4.1x 3.2x — 1.6x 2.7x 3.6x 5.0x 3.5x
Other data

Number of common shares outstanding (in thousands):

Average — on a diluted basis 76,044 76,507 74,697 77,178 76,812 77,588 76,013 75,661
Year-end 74,463 76,089 75,262 74,415 74,081 73,845 73,068 70,027
Number of stockholders (year—end) 12,531 13,584 10,171 11,033 11,686 11,821 11,438 11,724
Number of employees (year—end) 62,706 59,885 62,419 49,254 46,546 39,671 40,071 38,902
Total return to shareholders (five year annualizéd) 7.9% 1.2)% 6.8% 6.3% 20.8% 12.0% 25.8% 17.0%

stockholders’ equity — 22%, e) Return on average total assets — 5.6%, and f) Interest coverage — 5x. Excluding the first—quarter impact of the Brazilian
currency devaluation in 1999 and the gain from discontinued operations in 1998, returns on average stockholders’ equity were 19.9% and 16.5%, and retu
on average total assets were 5.7% and 4.3%. Excluding non-recurring items, selected 1997 Key Ratios would be as follows: a) Operating profit margin —
4.7%, b) Pre—tax margin — 2.7%, c) Net margin — 2.6%, d) Return on average stockholders’ equity — 12%, e) Return on average total assets — 2.7%, f) Inte
coverage — 3x.

5 Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and other items, as a percent of sales.

6 Earnings from continuing operations, as a percent of sales.

7 Net earnings (loss) before accounting change, divided by average stockholders’ equity.

8 Net earnings (loss) before accounting change, plus minority interest divided by average total assets.

9 Debt divided by debt, stockholders’ equity and minority interests.

10 Ratio of earnings from continuing operations (before income taxes, accounting change and interest expense) to interest expense.

11 Stock appreciation plus reinvested dividends.
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Shareholders’ and Other Information

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Whirlpool Corporation’s annual report on Form 10-K, a cassette-tape recording of the annual report to shareholders and other financial information is
available free of charge.

If you are not a stockholder of record — that is, if your Whirlpool shares are registered in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee — you must ask that
holder to mail stockholder reports directly to you. Company earnings releases for each quarter — typically issued in April, July, October and February — can
obtained by contacting Whirlpool's Director, Investor Relations:

Tom Filstrup

Whirlpool Corporation, 2000 N. M—63,
Mail Drop 2800

Benton Harbor, M| 49022-2692
Telephone: 269.923.3189

Fax: 269.923.3525

Email: thomas_c_filstrup@whirlpool.com

TRANSFER AGENT, SHAREHOLDER RECORDS, DIVIDEND DISBURSEMENTS AND CORPORATE SECRETARY

For information about or assistance with individual stock records, transactions, dividend checks or stock certificates, contact:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. Shareholder Services

P.O. Box 2500, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2500
Telephone: 800.446.2617

www.equiserve.com

For additional information about the company contact:

Robert T. Kenagy, Corporate Secretary

Whirlpool Corporation, 2000 N. M—63,
Mail Drop 2200
Benton Harbor, M| 49022-2692

Telephone: 269.923.3910



Fax: 269.923.3722

Email: robert_t_kenagy@whirlpool.com

DIRECT STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

As a participant in the DirectSERVICE Investment and Stock Purchase PROGRAM, you can be the direct owner of your shares of Whirlpool Common Stoc
Non-shareholders may purchase their initial shares through the plan for a minimum investment of $250, or through automatic bank account debits of $50 f
five months. Participants may make cash contributions of up to $250,000 annually, invested daily, with or without reinvesting their dividends, and can sell
part of the shares held in the program without exiting the plan. There are modest transaction processing fees and brokerage commissions for purchases, s
and dividend reinvestment. For details, contact EquiServe or visit their Direct Stock Purchase Plan Web site to enroll.

ANNUAL MEETING

Whirlpool Corporation’s next annual meeting is scheduled for April 15, 2003, at 9:30 a.m. (Central Time), at 181 West Madison Street, 7th Floor, Chicago,
IL.

STOCK EXCHANGES

Common stock of Whirlpool Corporation (exchange symbol: WHR) is listed on the New York and Chicago stock exchanges.

STOCK-SPLIT EXCHANGE AND DIVIDEND HISTORY

March 1952, 2—for-1 stock exchange
December 1954, 100% stock dividend
May 1965, 2—for-1
May 1972, 3—for-1

December 1986, 2—for-1

Example: 100 shares of Whirlpool common stock purchased in February 1952 equaled 4,800 shares in January 2003.

COMMON-STOCK

Market Price High Low Close
4Q 2002 $55.99 $39.23  $52.22
3Q 2002 66.36 44.79 45.86
2Q 2002 78.20 63.45 65.36
1Q 2002 79.80 61.85 75.55
4Q 2001 $74.20 $53.25 $73.33
3Q 2001 71.93 50.20 55.35
2Q 2001 65.50 48.81 62.50
1Q 2001 57.38 45.88 49.99
TRADEMARKS

AccuWave, Acros, Advantech, Axent, Bauknecht, big, Brastemp, briva, Calypso, ComfortAire, Conquest, Consul, Crolls, De Ville Grill, Dreamspace,
DryAire, Duet, Embraco, Eslab&oacute;n de Lujo, Estate, Facility, Fast Forward Ice, GearWall, Gladiator, Glide, Icemagic, Ideale, Ignis, ImPress, Inglis,



Insperience, Jupiter, KIC, KitchenAid, KitchenAid Experience, Laden, MagiCook, MagiCool, Maison Tri Chama, Max! Advance, Performer, Personal Valet,
Polar, Polara, Pratice, Quality, Quick Cool, Roper by Whirlpool Corporation, Satina, SinkSpa, 6th Sense, Supermatic, Timer Classe A, Whirlpool and
Whitemagic are trademarks of Whirlpool Corporation or its wholly or majority—owned affiliates.

Kenmore, Kenmore Elite and HE3t are trademarks of Sears, Roebuck and Co.

ENERGY STAR is a U.S. registered mark.

Epcot and Walt Disney World are registered marks of Disney Enterprises, Inc.

© 2003 Whirlpool Corporation.

All rights reserved.
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Directors & Executive Committee

DIRECTORS

Herman Cain %°

Chairman of the Board,
Godfather’s Pizza, Inc. and

Chief Executive Officer, T.H.E., Inc.

Gary T. DiCamillo *?

President and Chief Executive Officer,

TAC Worldwide Co.

Jeff M. Fettig

President and Chief Operating

Officer of the Company

Allan D. Gilmour 3
Vice Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer,

Ford Motor Company

Kathleen J. Hempel®®

Former Vice Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer,

Fort Howard Corporation

James M. Kilts 1*

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer,

The Gillette Company



Arnold G. Langbo **

Former Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer,

Kellogg Company

Miles L. Marsh 24

Former Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer,

Fort James Corporation

Philip L. Smith 23

Former Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer,

The Pillsbury Company

Paul G. Stern®*

Partner, Thayer Capital Partners, LLP and

Arlington Capital Partners, LLP

Janice D. Stoney"*

Former Executive Vice President,

US WEST Communications Group, Inc.

David R. Whitwam

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer of the Company

COMMITTEES

1. Audit
2. Corporate Governance and Nominating

3. Finance



4. Human Resources

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

David R. Whitwam

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Jeff M. Fettig

President and Chief Operating Officer

R. Stephen Barrett, Jr.

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Mark E. Brown

Senior Vice President,

Global Strategic Sourcing

Daniel F. Hopp

Senior Vice President,

Corporate Affairs and General Counsel

Paulo F. M. Periquito

Executive Vice President and President,

Latin American Region

David L. Swift

Executive Vice President,

North American Region

Michael D. Thieneman



Executive Vice President and

Chief Technology Officer

Michael A. Todman

Executive Vice President and

President, Whirlpool Europe

[Photo Appears Here]

YFrom Left Philip L. Smith, Gary T. DiCamillo, Kathleen J. Hempel, Herman Cain, Jeff M. Fettig, James M. Kilts, David R. Whitwam, Allan D. Gilmour,
Miles L. Marsh, Paul G. Stern, Janice D. Stoney, Arnold G. Langbo.
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Senior Officers & Corporate Addresses

SENIOR OFFICERS (VICE PRESIDENTS)

John Alexander

Whirlpool Brand, North America

J.C. Anderson

Senior Vice President,

North American Region Operations

Roy V. Armes

Whirlpool Mexico, North America

Betty A. Beaty

Controller

David A. Binkley

Global Human Resources

Marc R. Bitzer

Senior Vice President,
Marketing, Sales and Services,

Whirlpool Europe

R. David Butler

Chief Information Officer

Ruy Campos



Brazil Sales, Multibras

Blair A. Clark

Treasurer

Ted A. Dosch

Finance, North America

Garrick D'Silva

Regional Vice President,

Whirlpool Asia

Ernesto Heinzelmann

President and Chief Executive Officer,

Embraco S. A., Latin America

Barry Holt

Global Communications

Marise Fernandes Kumar

Emerging Brands and Categories,

North America

Karim Lalani

Sears Sales and Marketing,

North America

Rubin J. McDougal

Finance and Administration,

Whirlpool Europe



Gregory T. McManus

Sales and Distribution,

North America

Jamie Moldafsky

KitchenAid Brand,

North America

Che Naraine

Operations and Technology,

Whirlpool Europe

Giuseppe Perucchetti

Brand Marketing,

Whirlpool Europe

G. Alan Shaw

Customer Relationship Management,

North America

Nancy T. Snyder

Strategic Competency Creation

Jeremy S. Weinstein

Global Procurement Operations

W. Timothy Yaggi

Senior Vice President,

Brand Portfolio Group, North America

WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION GENERAL OFFICES



World Headquarters and North America Region

2000 N. M-63
Benton Harbor, Ml 49022-2692

Telephone: 269.923.5000

Europe Region

Viale G. Borghi 27
21025 Comerio (VA), ltaly
Telephone: 39.0332.759.111

Fax: 39.0332.759.347

Latin America Region

Av. das Na&ccedil;&otilde;es Unidas N. 12.995
S&atilde;o Paulo — S.P. CEP 04578-000, Brazil
Telephone: 55.11.5586.6100

Fax: 55.11.5586.6040

Asia Region

16th Floor, Paliburg Plaza
68 Yee Wo St.

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: 852.2881.0882

Fax: 852.2881.1018

Product and Service Information (North America)

KitchenAid brand: 800.422.1230

Whirlpool brand: 800.253.1301

Internet Address

Whirlpool financial information and more

are available at Whirlpool’s site on the



Internet: www.whirlpoolcorp.com

76 Senior Officer & Corporate Addresses



Y Our Vision

Every Home... Everywhere with Pride,

Passion and Performance

Y Our Mission

Everyone... Passionately Creating

Loyal Customers for Life



[LOGO OF WHIRLPOOL]

www.whirlpoolcorp.com



Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries
Subsidiary and Name Jurisdiction In
Under Which It Does Business Which Organized
Empreso Brasileira de Compressores S.A. Brazil
Multibras S.A. Eletrodomesticos Brazil
Whirlpool Canada Inc. Canada
Whirlpool do Brasil Ltda. Brazil
Whirlpool Europe B.V. The Netherlands
Whirlpool Financial Corporation Delaware
Whirlpool Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Whirlpool Patents Company Michigan
Whirlpool Properties, Inc. Michigan

The names of the Company’s other subsidiaries are omitted because, considered in the aggregate as a single subsidiary, such subsidiaries would not con:
a significant subsidiary as of December 31, 2002.



Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements No. 33—-34490, 33-34037, 33-21360, 33-00201, 2-64261, 33-05904, 33-40249
333-02827, 333-02825, 333-66211, 333-77167, 333—-32886, 333-42322, 333-72698, 333-90602 and 333-73726 of Whirlpool Corporation, Registratior
Statements No. 33-26680 and 33-53196 of Whirlpool Corporation pertaining to the Whirlpool Savings Plan, and Registration Statement No. 333-66163 o
Whirlpool Corporation pertaining to the Whirlpool 401(K) Plan, of our report dated February 4, 2003, with respect to the consolidated financial statements
and schedule of Whirlpool Corporation, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2002.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, lllinois

March 14, 2003



Exhibit 24

POWER OF ATTORNEY.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the undersigned, being a director or officer, or both, of WHIRLPOOL CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation (hereinafter called the “Corporation”), does hereby constitute and appoint DAVID R. WHITWAM, JEFF M. FETTIG, and DANIEL F. HOPP, with
full power to each of them to act alone, as the true and lawful attorneys and agents of the undersigned, with full power of substitution and resubstitution to ea
of said attorneys, to execute, file or deliver any and all instruments and to do all acts and things which said attorneys and agents, or any of them, deem advis:
to enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any requirements o
Securities and Exchange Commission in respect thereof, in connection with the filing under said Securities Exchange Act of the Corporation’s Annual Report
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, including specifically, but without limitation of the general authority hereby granted, the power and authori
to sign his or her name as a director or officer, or both, of the Corporation, as indicated below opposite his or her signature, to the Annual Report on Form 10-
or any amendment, post—effective amendment, or papers supplemental thereto to be filed in respect of said Annual Report on Form 10-K; and each of the
undersigned does hereby fully ratify and confirm all that said attorneys and agents, or any of them, or the substitute of any of them, shall do or cause to be dc
by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has subscribed these presents, as of the 18th day of February, 2003.

Name Title

/s/ David R. Whitwam

David R. Whitwam

/sl Jeff M. Fettig

Jeff M. Fettig

/sl R. Stephen Barrett, Jr.

R. Stephen Barrett, Jr.

/s| Betty A. Beaty

Betty A. Beaty

Director, Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Director, President and
Chief Operating Officer
(Principal Operating Officer)
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President and Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)



/sl Herman Cain

Herman Cain

/s| Gary T. DiCamillo

Gary T. DiCamillo

/sl Allan D. Gilmour

Allan D. Gilmour

/sl Kathleen J. Hempel

Kathleen J. Hempel

Bl PMES |\ KILTS

James M. Kilts

/sl Arnold G. Langbo

Arnold G. Langbo

/sl Miles L. Marsh

Miles L. Marsh

/s/ Philip L. Smith

Philip L. Smith

/sl Paul G. Stern

Paul G. Stern

/sl Janice D. Stoney

Janice D. Stoney

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director



Exhibit 99.1

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Whirlpool Corporation (the “Company”) for the annual period ended on December 31, 2002 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), David R. Whitwam, as Chief Executive of the Company, hereby certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002) that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly represents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/  David R. Whitwam

Name: David R. Whitwam
Title:  Chairman of the Board

Chief Executive
Officer
Date: March 14, 2003



Exhibit 99.2

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Whirlpool Corporation (the “Company”) for the annual period ended on December 31, 2002 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), R. Stephen Barrett, Jr., as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002) that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly represents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/sl R. Stephen Barrett, Jr.

Name: R. Stephen Barrett, Jr.
Title:  Executive Vice
President

and Chief Financial
Officer
Date: March 14, 2003
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